
 
 

Borough of Tamworth 
 

 
22 January 2024 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Council of this Borough to be 
held on TUESDAY, 30TH JANUARY, 2024 at 6.10 pm in the TOWN HALL, MARKET 
STREET, TAMWORTH, for the transaction of the following business:- 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

NON CONFIDENTIAL 
 
  
1 Apologies for Absence  
 
2 To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 16) 
 
3 Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary) 
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 
 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of 
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.  
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary 
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

 
4 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader, Members of the 

Cabinet or the Chief Executive  
 
5 Question Time:  

 (i) To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to 
Procedure Rule No. 10. 

 
(ii) To answer questions from members of the Council pursuant to 

Procedure Rule No. 11 
 

 

NON-CONFIDENTIAL



6 Update to Appointment of Cabinet and Allocation of Cabinet 
Responsibilities  

 To receive any changes and updates to Membership of Cabinet and Allocation of 
Responsibilities for 2023/24 
 

 
7 Update to Appointment of Committees  

 To receive any changes and updates to Committee Membership for 2023/24 
 

 
8 Street Trading Policy 2024 - 2026 (Pages 17 - 56) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Health and Community 
Partnerships) 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully  
 

 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
_____________________________________ 

Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 
Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 
be found here for further information. 

If a member of the public is particularly concerned about being filmed, please contact a member 
of Democratic Services before selecting a seat. 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 
here 

 
 
Marmion House 
Lichfield Street 
Tamworth 

mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


 

 
1  

 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
COUNCIL 

HELD ON 12th DECEMBER 2023 
 
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor J Harper (Mayor), Councillors D Maycock, P Turner, 

T Jay, C Adams, C Bain, B  Clarke, L Clarke, G Coates, C Dean, 
L Wood, D Cook, M Bailey, R Claymore, T Clements, A Cooper, 
S Daniels, S Doyle, J Jones, R Kingstone, J Oates, B Price, 
R Pritchard, S Smith, M Summers, P Thompson, P Thurgood, 
L Smith and J Wade 

 
The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Nicola 
Hesketh (Monitoring Officer), Tracey Pointon (Legal Admin & Democratic 
Services Manager) and Leanne Costello (Senior Scrutiny and Democratic 
Services Officer) 
 
 

56 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J. Wadrup 
 

57 TO RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20th November 2023 were approved and 
signed as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor A Cooper and seconded by Councillor L Wood) 
 

58 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Dean declared an interest in item 9 as a member of The Staffordshire 
Wildlife Trust 
Councillor R Kingstone declared an interest in item 9 as a member of the The 
Friends of Wiggington Park 
 

59 TO RECEIVE ANY ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, LEADER, 
MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
I would like to invite councillors to the Mayors Christmas Carol Service on 15th 
and 16th December at St Editha’s Church.  And also invite Councillors to a Civic 
reception in the Town Hall on 16th December prior to the Carol Service.  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
2 

 

And also draw your attention to a Mayoral Concert on February 10th at Tamworth 
Assembly Rooms featuring Tony Christie.  Tickets are now on sale  and the 
proceeds will be raising funds for Dementia charities in Tamworth.  
 

60 QUESTION TIME:  
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC NO. 1 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 10, Mr Huw Loxton, will ask the Acting Leader of 
the Council, Councillor T Jay, the following question:- 
 
Since declaring a climate emergency in 2019 what have the council been doing to 
encourage people to use more sustainable modes of transport and encourage 
cycling and walking and reduce over reliance on the motor vehicle? 
 
Answer 
 
Thank you for your question. On this matter I have two points of clarification. 
Firstly, the climate change declaration that the Borough made in 2019 refers only 
to the operation of the Council and its services. Since the declaration a baseline 
assessment of Council operations has been undertaken and the authority is 
currently commissioning work on an action plan, building energy audits and an 
adaptation plan. In addition, the Council is in the process of appointing a climate 
change officer.  
 
Secondly all matters related to travel and transport fall within the remit of the 
County Council.  
 
Having said all of that, the Tamworth Local Plan does contain policies which 
seeks to support sustainable decision making in terms of managing change. 
Policy SU2 Delivering Sustainable Transport, states that Development should be 
accessible by walking, cycling and public transport and proposals should prioritise 
access by these modes of transport above the private car. 
 
A recent example of implementing policy SU2 arose with a FHSF application 
relating to the new Flex building which is proposed close to the Middle entry 
passage and town hall. The County Council required additional cycle store in the 
pedestrian areas and additionally, to encourage staff associated with the 
proposed new building, 1 cycle storage space per unit. The Borough Council’s 
planning team requested that changes were made to proposals to ensure that the 
application was policy compliant.  
 
Supplementary  
 
The Local Government Associations’ Decarbonising transport series states that 
transport is the biggest emitter of carbon of any sector in the UK and to reach the 
target of net zero emissions by 2050 or sooner there will need to be a 
fundamental transformation of the way we move.  The climates parking policy 
briefing states it is essential to locate housing in the right places.  New 
developments in more accessible and central locations generate less car travel 
whilst increased residential densities are associated with lower transport CO2 

Page 4



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
3 

 

emissions.  Parking for accessible developments can and should be limited.  Can 
I then ask what message with regards to your declared climate emergency do you 
think it sends out when a sustainable planning application recommended for 
approval by officers is turned down in the main for a lack of car parking provision 
despite having provision for 54 cycle parking places and being ideally placed to 
encourage the use of public transport 
 
The acting Leader Councillor T Jay gave the following response 
 
It is up to the Councillors and the Planning Committee to approve or not an 
application and if they have deemed it unfit with the number of spaces, they are 
right to do that.  I agree with the objectives of the government in trying to get 
people to use more sustainable modes of transport, you can’t force it down 
people’s throats you have to gradually get there, you can’t just say that all 
developments no can’t have cars that’s impossible people need cars.  I fully 
support that decision.   
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 1 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor J Wadrup will ask the Portfolio 
Holder for Operations & Finance, Councillor T Jay, the following question:- 
 
Considering the recent Section 114 notices served at Local Authorities. Can you 
assure members and the residents of Tamworth that you have carried out regular 
and robust pay audits to minimise the risk of a financial deficit due to any potential 
Equal Pay liability?  
This is one element of risk to Local Authorities, and we need to ensure this 
doesn’t impact on budgets and putting the council dire straits. Can you clarify 
when the last Equal Pay audit was carried out, please? 
 
In Cllr Wadrup’s absence the Mayor agreed to send Cllr Wadrup the following 
answer.   
 
Answer 
 
Tamworth Borough Council has undertaken an Equal Pay Review recently, using 
snapshot data from September 2023. Not only is this good practice, but it was 
also felt financially prudent following recent coverage of neighbouring Authorities 
(Birmingham and Coventry). 
 
The Council undertakes a job evaluation for each role to ensure that posts are 
graded fairly and consistently meaning the rate of pay is for duties undertaken 
irrespective of gender. 
 
The findings of the audit will be presented in a report to the Appointments and 
Staffing Committee in January 2024.   
 
For clarification, an equal pay audit is an examination of Tamworth Borough 
Council’s pay data to determine whether employees are being paid fairly or 
whether some groups are being treated more favourably than others.  

Page 5



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
4 

 

 
The entitlement applies to all contractual terms, not just those related to 
remuneration.  This means that, as well as basic pay, “pay” includes occupational 
pension benefits, non-discretionary bonuses, holiday pay, sick pay, overtime, and 
shift payments.  It also includes non-monetary contractual terms such as annual 
leave, company cars and access to sports and social benefits.    
 
Using snap shot data as of September 2023 and examining payments made in 
the previous 12 months, analysis was undertaken in accordance with the Equality 
and Human Rights Commission recommended methodology:  

1. Calculate average basic pay, then calculate the difference between pay of 
women and men for each equal work group. 

2. Calculate average total pay, then calculate the difference between total pay of 
women and men for each equal work group.  

3. Compare access to and amounts received of each element of pay. 
4. Examine causes of differences of 5% or more, or any recurring differences of 3% 

or more. 
5. Non-monetary contractual terms such as annual leave and access to benefits 

were also reviewed. 
 

I am pleased to advise, analysis of ‘basic’ pay did not find a percentage 
difference of 5% or more.  There were two pay grades where a pay gap exceed 
3% which were examined and could be objectively justified linked to the 
employee’s length of service and annual incremental progression. 
 
Larger differences were found in ‘total’ pay analysis, when the unsocial hours 
allowances, ex-gratia, acting up and overtime payments were included.  This was 
down to three factors: 
 

1 Payment of overtime,  
2 Payment of an unsocial hours enhancement which is 10% of salary for evening 

and weekend working (where 25% of working time is undertaken during this 
period) 

3 Ex-gratia payments related to undertaking additional responsibilities.  
 

This was examined and all could be objectively justified.   
 
The audit’s overall assessment was: 
 

• TBC is at low risk of an equal pay claim in relation basic salaries to employees 
and there are no current job evaluation claims.   

• TBC is at low risk of an equal pay claim in relation to total pay with a 
recommendation to review employees whose working hours include weekend and 
evening working to ensure, (i) Those in receipt of the allowance are reaching the 
threshold of 25% of working time during unsocial hours and (ii) Those not in 
receipt of the allowance are not reaching this threshold.  Work has commenced 
on this assessment and to date has found the employees are being recompensed 
correctly.   

It is further recommended that a full Equal Pay Audit is undertaken on a 3 yearly 
basis. 
 
 

Page 6



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
5 

 

 
 
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 2 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor G Coates will ask the Portfolio 
Holder for Operations and Finance, Councillor Thomas Jay, the following 
question:- 
 
Residents come across many green and blue bins either dumped or left 
abandoned, all contaminated with rubbish, who at Tamworth Borough Council 
should be contacted to deal with this growing issue? 
 
Answer 
  
Please contact the Joint Waste Service on 0345 0020022 or e-mail 
waste.strategy@lichfielddc.gov.uk  
  
A member of the team will then investigate and resolve the issue.   
  
It is possible the bin could be classed as fly tipping.  If this is the case the Joint 
Waste Service will contact the Street Cleaning department at Tamworth Borough 
Council on 01827 709709, and work in partnership to action. There 
are new increased fines for fly tipping  
 
 
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 3 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor G Coates will ask the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing and Planning, Councillor S Smith, the following 
question:- 
 
Can the council confirm or deny that the council has ran out of money to 
undertake housing repairs on a council property, one resident has contacted me 
and said an employee of the Council told them there is no money till after April 
2024? 
 
Answer 
 
The Council has sufficient budget in place to fulfil its repairing obligations as set 
out in the Council's Housing Repairs Policy and as required by all relevant 
legislation. Repairs should continue to be reported to the Repairs Contact Centre 
where they will be assessed and issued to our contractor with the appropriate 
prioritisation if the resident can make contact with us with their details provided 
the repairs team would be happy to discuss any specific repairs.   
Supplementary 
 

Page 7

file:///S:/CorporateServices/Democratic%20Services/Council%20and%20Committee%20Meetings/Committees%202023-2024/Questions%20to%20Council/12.12.23/waste.strategy@lichfielddc.gov.uk%20


Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
6 

 

Who would you like them to contact yourself or is there a name I can give the 
resident.   
 
Cllr Smith gave the following response:   
 
With this one if you email me direct, I will make sure it is looked at.   
 
.  
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 4 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor S Daniels will ask the Acting 
Leader of the Council, Councillor T Jay, the following question:- 
 
Bolehall residents are increasingly concerned that it is unsafe to walk, use a 
wheelchair or mobility scooter or manoeuvre a push char along Blythe Street 
without having to go into the middle of the road- so dangerous is the parking by 
the Royal Mail Delivery Office with pavements often completely covered by cars. 
 
Will the Leader of the Council support my fellow councillors and I in bringing this 
dangerous situation to an end? 
 
Answer  
 
It is a county council issue do I support you in bringing the dangerous situation to 
an end of course I support you and anything that I can do to help I will. You are 
elected in that area so I will push it back to you to contact the County Councillors.  
Anything I can do to support you I will, but you are elected to support residents in 
Bolehall.    
 
Supplementary  
 
Will you support us at looking not only at Bolehall but all wards in Staffordshire 
With Staffordshire county council to keep our roads safe in particular pot hole free 
 
Councillor Jay gave the following response.   
 
Happy to support any work on street and roads in Tamworth not the whole of 
Staffordshire  
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 5 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor C Adams will ask the Portfolio 
Holder for Housing & Planning, Councillor S Smith, the following question:- 
As the council is aware of the problems at Glenfield Sheltered housing, included 
the heating system, could you please make sure that it is a priority of the council 
to fix the issues there? 
 
Answer  
 
We have been made aware of some issues with the heating at this sheltered 
scheme, a number of repairs have been completed to ensure that the boilers are 

Page 8



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
7 

 

functioning properly. However, we are aware that some flats are experiencing 
issues with some of their radiators, although not all flats and not all radiators are 
affected.  
Our repairs team and contractors have been working systematically through the 
building with the aim of resolving any outstanding issues as quickly as possible. 
Hot water is available in all flats and we have supplied temporary heaters to 
residents so that they are able to heat their flats adequately.  
 
The works done to date have shown a marked improvement in the operation of 
the system however there is more work still to be completed in order to further 
improve the situation. There has been ongoing communication with residents to 
ensure that they are aware of the works that are taking place and with their 
cooperation we will continue to monitor the performance of the system. 
 
Supplementary 
 
It will hopefully get fixed fairly soon and the other problems sent to the Council will 
get solved. But could we have a review of issues at Tamworth in case there are 
any other places have the same problem.    
 
Councillor Smith gave the following response 
 
I am no aware of any additional issues but of course if there are either those that 
are affected, please do report those or yourself as representative as well.   
 
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 6 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor C Adams will ask the Acting Leader 
of the Council, Councillor T Jay, the following question:-, the following 
question:- 
 
When the plans changed to demolished and rebuild the former Peel café, why did 
the plans not go back to the planning committee? 
 
Answer 
 
Thank you for your question.  
 
The application was considered to be minor in terms of what was proposed, when 
compared to the substantial building modifications approved through planning 
committee in 2022 for the Peel Cafe, and as such would be delegated to the 
planning team. 
 
 This is not the first example within the FHSF programme where an application 
was considered to be minor and not taken through the planning committee.  Since 
the Peel demolition at first floor level the decision has been taken that all 
applications, even the minor ones will go through planning committee and as 
such a tree application which would always be delegated will be on the planning 

Page 9



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
8 

 

committee agenda early next year due to the fact that the contractor needs to lop 
the branches to allow for scaffold to be erected at TEC2.  
 
Supplementary  
 
I know it was  in hindsight I didn’t expect you to be able to I am happy with the 
changes you are making but one thing I would like is to could the delegated 
powers to be reviewed by Audit & Governance so we can have proper 
procedures in how things work. 
 
Cllr Jay gave the following response  
 
There is going to be some work on delegated powers so if you want an input on 
that you are welcome to join.   
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 7 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor C Dean will ask the Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and Planning, Councillor S Smith, the following question:- 
 
Could the leader please advise me who has the responsibility for protecting the 
natural habitats within our borough?  Cllr Daniels and myself are dealing with a 
major issue in the Bolehall ward where a resident has been allowed to cut down a 
great many tress and lay a hardcore road surface on what is considered to be 
‘Common Land.’  Would the trees in question have been covered by the Tree 
Preservation List from 1967.  I understand there is a TPO listed online for Bolehall 
and Kettlebrook. 
 
 
Answer 
 
Thank you for your question. The issue that you refer to is on private land which 
does not have a wildlife or nature designation, which means that the landowner 
can do what they want with it. I have checked and there are no TPO’s that relate 
to the site and it is not within a conservation area either (which further protects 
trees).  
 
The track which has been laid has been taken up as an issue with the planning 
enforcement officer and an application to regularise the matter has been 
requested. If this is not forthcoming the matter will escalate to enforcement. As 
part of the application process the issue of the track, landownership and 
designation of common land will all be visited.  
 
Supplementary  
 
It just seems a little out of kilter with what we have been told the last two surgeries 
Cllr Daniles and myself and Councillor Harper was at one we had 70 people and 
50 people at these two surgeries.  People are really worried about this and they 
come with a great many documents and they seem to be able to find documents 
on our website that relate to some of these things I’ve asked so I’m not quite sure 
why we are not having the same ideas that they are, why we are coming back 

Page 10



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
9 

 

with another answer and there is definitely there is some paperwork around that 
says there is natural habitats on that piece of land and some of the area that as 
been hard cored isn’t on public land its on the piece of common land so I would 
like that looked into if possible.   
 
Councillor Smith gave the following response.  
 
Yes lets get together and look at the information you have got we can go back to 
the Officers and get the true facts if they are different to what I have just said and 
yes we can get together to get a resolution for the residents in that area.  
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 8 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor C Dean will ask the Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and Planning, Councillor S Smith, the following question:- 
 
Can the leader tell me what duty of care we have to our elderly residents in the 
High Rise flats.  I have a gentleman who has a medical condition that means he 
needs constant temperature in his environment, but between our contractors and 
Octopus energy who are his suppliers he has been without heating for a 
considerable time, having to resort to using fan heaters, which will be having an 
effect on his budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
Answer  
 
Officers have spoken with Councillor Dean and confirmed the address.  We know 
that the storage heaters at this flat were replaced earlier this year and it is 
understood that the new heaters are working as they should be. However, the 
tenant advises that since having a new smart meter installed there has been an 
issue with their 'Economy 7' service which the provider Octopus Energy is aware 
of. It would appear that rather than receiving the 7 hours of electricity every night 
required to properly power the storage heaters the meter was only providing 3 
hours of power and as such the storage heaters were not able to get up to 
temperature. Following several visits from the meter provider it would appear that 
the meter is now in an 'inactive' state which means the storage heaters aren't 
working at all. The tenant has confirmed to us that they have temporary heaters 
available to them should they be needed. 
Whilst the Council can make contact with and attempt to put pressure on the 
energy supplier on behalf of the tenant it would appear that this is a matter for the 
energy provider to resolve as the Council cannot directly interfere with the meter. 

The Council seeks to support all of its tenants and would urge any resident facing 
financial hardship to contact the council who can provide advice and assistance.  
The Council has a dedicated officer for the high rise, she is our high rise co-
ordinator who can visit any tenant to support.  We have already asked her to visit 
the tenant to discuss support options including signposting to other agencies and 
organisations. 

Page 11



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
10 

 

 
Supplementary  
 
I think my question really was about who goes back and checks that these things 
are done because this problem seems to fall between us, and the supplier and I 
think once again it comes down to communication.  Do people know who they 
should go to it’s the first time I’ve about the High rise Co-Ordinator, probably I 
should have known about them and its that thing again we are talking about 
people using other forma of heating if people are having to use fan heaters its 
going to be costing them a fortune to keep warm and they are the people that can 
least afford to do this. 
 
Councillor Smith gave the following response 
 
This is a continuing story there are certain sections in this that need to be 
explored in relation to the meter but also to the heating systems that have been 
installed.  I would like to work with Officers to again establish all the facts and 
come back with some solutions for now and the future.     
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 9 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor L Wood will ask the Portfolio 
Holder for Entertainment and Leisure, Councillor A Cooper, the following 
question:- 
 
I've had a resident approach me with concerns of tree branches growing onto 
their roof, and onto the cables that run from a telegraph pole to multiple homes 
nearby. There is also a potential issue of the solar panels on the library being 
affected because of the trees. Can I ask whose responsibility it is when it comes 
to tree maintenance in St. Editha's churchyard? 
 
Answer 
 
The Environment, Culture and Wellbeing Team are in the process of conducting a 
land registry enquiry to ascertain the ownership and therefore where the 
responsibilities for maintenance of St. Editha’s churchyard falls, following this 
query. The churchyard may either be the responsibility of the Lichfield Diocese or 
Staffordshire County Council. 
 
If the resident is able to provide more detail with regards to which tree (s) is 
causing the problems to their property this would be useful. This can be reported 
via Tamworth Borough Councils Website Link: Street scene - Green team | 
Tamworth Borough Council 
 
The library is the responsibility of Staffordshire County Council, and Tamworth 
Borough Council are yet to receive any concerns that SCC may have with regards 
to the trees affecting the solar panels.  
 
The team will be able to provide further information back to the Portfolio Holder 
once the above information has been ascertained. 

Page 12

https://mytamworth.tamworth.gov.uk/do-it-online/report-it/street-scene-green-team/
https://mytamworth.tamworth.gov.uk/do-it-online/report-it/street-scene-green-team/


Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
11 

 

 
Supplementary 
 
I am glad that you clarified that for me according to the church they are not 
responsible they said that the maintenance of graveyard falls under the control of 
the borough council and the council should have written notice o9n that one.  The 
resident as spoken to the county council and its nothing to do with them either.  
Can we have some clarity on whose responsibility it actually is?  
 
Councillor Cooper gave the following response 
 
As I have previously pointed out as far as we are concerned with our data base it 
is not us, if you could be more specific which trees, they are then we will double 
check and get back to you however as far as we are concerned it not us that is 
responsible for them.  It is likely then if you have spoke to the church then it is the 
County Council, and I will implore you to take that up with you County Councillor  
 
 
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL NO. 10 
 
Under Procedure Rule No 11, Councillor L Wood will ask the Acting Leader 
of the Council, Councillor T Jay, the following question:- 
 
Is there an update on the roof over the Middle Entry, and have considerations 
now been taken when it comes to the businesses that will be affected by its' 
eventual removal?  
 
Answer 
 
Thank you for your question. Yes, throughout the whole process an update on the 
removal of the roof will be the subject of a Full Council report timetabled for 15 
January.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61 CONFER THE TITLE OF HONORARY ALDERWOMAN ON MICHELLE COOK  
 
On Monday 20th November 2023 It was resolved that, pursuant to section 249 (5) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 this Council does hereby confer the Title of Honorary 
Alderwoman of the Borough upon Mrs Michelle Cook In recognition of her eminent 
services to The Borough of Tamworth whilst she was a member of Tamworth Borough 
Council. 
 
 
 

Page 13



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
12 

 

62 APPOINTMENT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
 
Councillor Thomas Jay was nominated as Leader of the Council 
 
(Moved by Councillor P Turner and seconded by Councillor T Clements) 
 
Votes in favour of Councillor T Jay  
For 17 
Abstain 12 
 
It was therefore declared that Councillor T Jay is elected as Leader of the Council 
 
 

63 CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  
 
The Leader, Councillor T Jay announced the intention to form a Conservative and 
Independent Futures coalition. Indicating there would be changes to Cabinet in 
due course. 
 

64 NATURE RECOVERY DECLARATION  
 
Report of the Leader of the Council to declare that nature is in crisis and to 
commit to the recovery of nature across the Borough and wider Staffordshire. 
 
 
Resolved  that Council 

  
1. Agreed that the Borough Council makes a Nature Recovery 

Declaration, Appendix 1. 
  
 (Moved en bloc by Councillor T Jay and seconded by Councillor 

D Cook) 
  
 

65 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY MID-YEAR REVIEW REPORT 2023/24  
 
Report of the portfolio holder for operations and finance to present to Members 
the Mid-year Review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy. 
 
Resolved that Council 
  

1. Approved the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy Mid-year Review Report 2023/24. 

  
 (Moved en bloc by Councillor T Jay and seconded by Councillor 

D Cook) 
  
 

66 LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2024/25  

Page 14



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
13 

 

 
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Finance to recommend that 
Cabinet and Council approves the implementation of a revised Council Tax 
Reduction scheme with effect from the 1 April 2024. 
 
Resolved that Council 

  
1. Approved the introduction of a new income banded/grid scheme 

for working age applicants with effect from 1 April 2024 to 
reduce the administrative burden placed on the Council by the 
introduction of Universal Credit and to increase the overall level 
of support for the lowest income families. 

  
 (Moved en bloc by Councillor T Jay and seconded by Councillor 

D Cook) 
  
 

67 DRAFT CHARITABLE COLLECTIONS POLICY 2024 - 2028  
 
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Health and Community 
Partnerships to bring before Full Council the Licensing Committee 
recommendation that they consider the draft Charitable Collections Policy set out 
at Appendix 1 as suitable for adoption. 
 
Resolved that Council 
  

1. Considered the draft Charitable Collection Policy 2024 – 2028 
as suitable for adoption. 

  
 (Moved en bloc by Councillor T Jay and seconded by Councillor 

D Cook) 
  
 

68 SEXUAL ESTABLISHMENT POLICY 2024 - 2028  
 
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Health and Community 
Partnerships to bring before Full Council the Licensing Committee 
recommendation that they consider the draft Sexual Establishment Policy set out 
at Appendix 1 and, subject to any recommended amendments, approve the draft 
policy for adoption. 
 
Resolved that Council 
  

1. Considered the draft Sexual Establishment Policy 2024 – 2028 
as suitable for adoption, subject to any amendments made 
following the comments received by Staffordshire Police 

  
 (Moved en bloc by Councillor T Jay and seconded by Councillor 

D Cook) 
  
  

Page 15



Council 12 December 2023 
 

 
14 

 

  
 The Mayor  
 

 

Page 16



Full Council  
 
 

Tuesday 30th January 2024 
 
 

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environmental Health and Community Partnerships 
 
 

Street Trading Policy 2024 - 2026 
 
 
Exempt Information 
None 
 
 
Purpose 
The aim of the Policy is to create a street trading environment which ensures fair trading, 
protects the amenity of residents, ensures the safety of those trading, promotes diversity and 
consumer choice and provides applicants with advice and guidance on the Council’s 
approach to the administration for street trading consents and licences under Schedule 4 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”). 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That Full Council approve the draft Street Trading Policy 2024 – 2026 as set out in 
Appendix 1 and 

 
2. That Full Council approve the areas to be considered ‘consent’ streets suitable for 

adoption and to advertise the areas for consent once adopted.  
 
 
Executive Summary 
Tamworth Borough Council is the Licensing Authority responsible for considering 
applications for a range of activities that require a street trading consent under Schedule 4 of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.  
 
This legislation allows the Council to set a policy, conditions and fees for the grant, variation, 
renewal and revocation of street trading consents or licences.  
 
Tamworth Borough Council has adopted street trading provisions, but no areas have been 
classified as ‘consent streets’ for the purposes of street trading and no formal Street Trading 
Policy has ever been adopted.  
 
In order to ensure that street trading in Tamworth reflects the current needs of the Borough, 
a draft Street Trading Policy has been produced.  
 
At the Licensing committee that was held on the 11th September 2023, members discussed  
options in relation to the areas to be considered ‘consent’ streets. It was determined that  
Consent Street should include the whole of the Borough apart from the Castle Grounds and 
Town Centre streets and that the exact detail was delegated to Officers and the Portfolio 
Holder. In addition the Committee noted the contents of the draft Street Trading Policy 
incorporating the agreed relevant consent areas and that the policy be suitable for public 
consultation. 
 
 
Officers and the Portfolio Holder determined that:- 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



On page Page 4:Definition of terms used within this policy  
 
Authorised event – an event that is organised by Tamworth Borough Council or an 
Independent Event Organiser who has made payment to Tamworth Borough Council for the 
hire of council owned land for the proposed event and will commit to provide details of Public 
Liability Insurance and Food Hygiene ratings (if required) to the Arts & Events Team.  
  
On page Page 5: Local Exemptions 
 
Any event that has been classified as an ‘authorised event’ by the Arts & Events Team of 
Tamworth Borough Council will be exempt from requiring Street Trading Consents. 
  
Om page 6: Street Trading within TamworthTamworth Borough Council has designated all 
streets within the borough as consent streets, with the exception of the A5 dual carriageway 
and Lower Gungate from it’s junction at Spinning School Lane and Little Church Lane which 
is designated as prohibited streets. There are no licensed streets in Tamworth. 
 
On page 7: continued 
 
Traders who wish to trade as part of an organised event must also apply to the Council for a 
street trading consent.  This does not effect the contractual requirements in relation to the 
Market Provider. 
 
 
With the additional text incorporated into the draft policy, public consultation was undertaken 
between the 20th October 2023 and 15th December 2023. A list of those that were consulted 
is attached at Appendix 2. No responses to the consultation were received.  No amendments 
have been made to the draft policy following the consultation exercise. 
At the Licensing Committee held on the 11th January 2024 members resolved to recommend 
to Full Council that the draft street trading policy be adopted and that that Full Council adopt 
the areas to be considered ‘consent’ streets as suitable for adoption and to advertise the 
areas for consent once adopted. 
 
 
Options Considered 
The regulation of street trading could have implications for events ran by the authority.  With 
this in mind,  the Arts and Events team were consulted on the proposals.  The team advised 
that they already experience significant issues with securing traders to attend events that the 
authority organise, any additional charge on these traders for such events is likely to result in 
traders refusing to participate and potentially restrict events that can be hosted by the 
authority.   
 
The potential effect on events hosted by the council has resulted in a number of options 
regarding the administration of street trading needing to be considered.  These are: 
 
The whole Borough be consented.  This may result in a reduction in the number of events 
that are viable to run and the number of traders at events due to the extra trader fee being 
charged.  It was therefore considered more appropriate that the following wording be 
incorporated into the consultation policy. 
 
Page 5 Local Exemptions 
Any event that has been classified as an ‘authorised event’ by the Arts & Events Team of 
Tamworth Borough Council will be exempt from requiring Street Trading Consents. 
 
Page 6  Street Trading within Tamworth  

Tamworth Borough Council has designated all streets within the borough as consent streets, 
with the exception of the A5 dual carriageway and Lower Gungate from it’s junction at 

Page 18



Spinning School Lane and Little Church Lane which is designated as a prohibited streets. 
There are no licensed streets in Tamworth. 

 
Page 7 continued 
Traders who wish to trade as part of an organised event must also apply to the Council for a 
street trading consent.  This does not affect the contractual requirements in relation to the 
Market Provider. 
 
Resource Implications 
Street Trading should operate a net nil budget on a cost recovery basis with expenditure 
funded by income collected through consent fees. The cost of administration and compliance 
activity for street trading consent informs the setting of consent fees.  
 
 
Legal/Risk Implications Background 
The Council’s primary statutory rights in relation to street trading are set out in Schedule 4 of 
the Local Government Miscellaneous Provision Act 1982.  
 
In addition to activities authorised expressly under the above legislation, the Council may 
also do whatever is reasonably incidental to that power. This is given statutory effect in 
Section 111 (1) Local Government Act 1972 which states: 
 
“Without prejudice to any powers exercisable apart from this section but subject to the 
provisions of this Act and any other enactment passed before or after this Act, a local 
authority shall have power to do anything (whether or not involving the expenditure, 
borrowing or lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of any property or rights) which 
is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of their 
functions.” 
 
 
Equalities Implications 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Diversity and Equality 
Policies. 
 
 
Environment and Sustainability Implications (including climate change) 
N/A 
 
Background Information 
The legislation that applies to street trading is contained in the Local Government  
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 and the Pedlars Act 1871. Some exceptions  
are contained in the Police, Factories etcetera (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act  
1916 relating to charitable street collections. 
 
The 1982 Act allows local authorities to adopt provisions to control street trading  
as follows: - 
• Prohibited Streets- where no street trading is allowed; 
• Consent Streets- where trading is allowed when a consent is issued; 
• Licensed Streets- whereby trading is allowed from a designated pitch- this is  
often used for street markets. 
 
There is no statutory appeal against the refusal to issue a consent, but there is a  
statutory appeal in the event there is a refusal to issue a licence. If the local  
authority does not apply a designation for street trading, then legislative controls  
are minimal and generally only cover pedlars and charity issues. 
 

Page 19



Tamworth Borough Council adopted the 1982 Act Street trading provisions, currently no 
public roads are classified as ‘consent streets’ for the purposes of street trading. No formal 
street trading policy has ever been implemented. 
 
Street trading involves the sale and exposing or offering for sale, of any article in a street. 
Street includes any road, footway, or other area to which the public have access without 
payment and includes any part of a street. 
 
As the definition of “street” includes any land to which the public have access without 
payment, private land to which the public has free access may also be included. Street 
trading law and this policy therefore can extend to events off the highway that are conducted 
on private premises. 
 
Members should note that for the purposes of the Act, the following matters are not deemed 
to be street trading and therefore do not need to obtain a street trading consent;- 

� Trading by a person acting as a Pedlar under the authority of a Pedlars Certificate 
granted under the Pedlars Act 1871. Such certificates are issued by the Police and 
not the local authority. 

� Anything done in a market or fair, the right to hold which was acquired by virtue of a 
grant or acquired or established by virtue of an enactment or order. 

� Trading as a news vendor. 
� Selling items, or offering or exposing them for sale, as a rounds person. 
� Trading which is carried on at a premises used as a petrol filling station, or is carried 

on at a premises used as a shop or in a street adjoining premises so used and as 
part of the business of the shop. 

� Trading in a trunk road picnic area provided by the Secretary of State under section 
112 of the Highways Act 1980  

� Selling things, or offering or exposing them for sale, as a roundsman. (Roundsman 
include milkmen, coalmen etc. who have established or recognized customers in the 
street)  

� The use of trading under Part VIIA of the Highways Act 1980 of an object or structure 
placed on, in or over a highway;  

� The operation of facilities for recreation or refreshment under Part VIIA of the 
Highways Act 1980 

 
It should be noted that there are a number of different type of street trading activities, from 
static street trading (i.e. burger van), mobile street trading (i.e. ice cream traders), 
markets/fairs/carnivals and special events.  
 
The Policy sets out the following in order to assist potential applicants before applying: - 
criteria for choosing a trading location/pitch which is aimed to assist potential applicants - 
requirements of trading vehicles i.e. emissions and encouragement of electronic vehicles - 
guidance on employees of street traders - operating hours - guidance on ice cream van 
chimes - trading near to schools - how the application process works from submission, 
consultation and determination - guidance on suitability of an applicant - requirements for 
street trading during events / special events  
 
The purpose of the Policy is therefore to: - provide guidance to applicants and the decision 
makers - to ensure fair trade occurs between mobile traders - protect the amenity of 
residents - promote diversity and consumer choice - provides applicants with advice and 
guidance on the Council’s approach to the administration of applications for street trading 
licences - prevent obstruction of the streets in the district and to ensure the safety of persons 
using them. 
 
The adoption of a proposed street trading policy is a Council function, supported by 
consultation with the Licensing Committee.  
 
 
 

Page 20



Report Author 
Sarah Gear – Senior Licensing Officer 
 
 
List of Background Papers 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 
 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 – Draft Street Trading Policy  
Appendix 2 – List of Consultees 
Appendix 3 – Plan of Tamworth Town Centre 
Appendix 4 – Impact Assessment 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 
Street Trading Policy 

 

 

 

2024 - 2026 
 

Page 23



 

2 
 

 

  

 

Contents 

Section Subject Page 

1 Background and Introduction 3 

2 Definitions  4 

3 What is street trading? 4 

4 Types of street trading  6 

5 Street trading in Tamworth 6 

6 Street Trading Consents  7 

7 Key considerations when assessing an application 8 

8 Letting of pitches  11 

9 Fees and charges 12 

10 How to apply for street trading consent     12 

11 Determining applications 13 

12 Refusing applications 15 

13 Revoking Street Trading Consent  16 

14 Responsibilities of the Street Trading Consent holder 17 

15 Surrendering of Street Trading Consent  18 

16 Enforcement of street trading  19 

17 Equality and Diversity  20 

18 Complaints against the service  20 

Annex 1 Relevant offences when determining suitability of an 
applicant for a street trading consent 

21 

Annex 2 Procedure for determining Street Trading Consent 
applications  

23 

Annex 2 General Street Trading Consent Conditions 24 

Page 24



 

3 
 

1. Background and Introduction 

Tamworth Borough Council has adopted the provisions of Schedule 4 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to regulate street trading in the 
borough of Tamworth through a Street Trading Consent Scheme.  

Tamworth Borough Council recognises the valuable contribution that street trading 
can make to communities, culture and the local economy.  

This policy sets out Tamworth Borough Council’s approach for managing street 
trading in the borough, and the process for applications and decision making. 

It is Tamworth Borough Council’s intention that the application of the Street Trading 
Policy, together with the proper application of street trading law in a consistent, fair 
and proportionate way will benefit the people who live, work in and visit Tamworth. 

Objectives of this policy  

• To help protect public health and safety. 

• To help safeguard public places that may be adversely affected by 
undesirable or uncontrolled street trading activities. 

• To ensure that traders operate within the law and act fairly in their dealings 
with the public; and to prevent, nuisance, unsafe practices and anti-social 
behaviour.  

• To promote a flexible approach in relation to applicants seeking to operate 
new street trading businesses in Tamworth. 

• To provide applicants and Consent Holders with advice and guidance on the 
Council’s approach to the administration and enforcement of street trading.  

• To enable the Council to deal with street trading applications and consents in 
a consistent, transparent, fair and proportionate way.  

 Review of the policy    

This policy will be kept under review and where any significant amendments are 
considered necessary these will be approved by the Licensing Committee, after 
appropriate and relevant consultations have taken place. Minor amendments that do 
not impact on the aims and objectives of the policy, or reflect changes in legislation, 
will be made with the approval of the Assistant Director for Growth and Regeneration 
in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder.   

 

 

Page 25



 

4 
 

2. Definition of terms used within this policy  

Within the terms of the Tamworth Borough Council Street Trading Consent Scheme 
the following definitions shall mean: 

The Council                           Tamworth Borough Council  

Consent Street                       A street where street trading is 
                                               prohibited without the consent of  
                                               Tamworth Borough Council  
 
Consent                                  A consent to trade on a street by  
                                               Tamworth Borough Council  
 
Consent Holder                      The person or company to whom the                    
                                               consent to trade has been issued by Tamworth                         
                                               Borough Council  
 
Authorised officer                  An officer employed by Tamworth Borough 
                                              Council to act in accordance with the provisions  
                                              of the Local Government (Miscellaneous  
                                              Provisions) Act 1982 
 
A Pedlar                              A pedlar is a trader who must: 

• Keep moving, stopping only to serve customers at 
their request  

• Move from place to place and not circulate within 
the same area  

• Hold a valid pedlar’s certificate issued by a Chief 
Constable of Police  

 
Authorised event  an event that is organised by Tamworth Borough Council 

or an Independent Event Organiser who has made 
payment to Tamworth Borough Council for the hire of 
council owned land for the proposed event and will 
commit to provide details of Public Liability Insurance and 
Food Hygiene ratings (if required) to the Arts & Events 
Team. 

3. What is street trading?  

The legislation that governs street trading is Schedule 4 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, (“The Act”). The Act defines street trading as 
the selling or exposing or offering for sale of any article (including a living thing) in a 
street.  

The Act states that a street includes any road, footway, beach or other area to which 
the public have access without payment.  

Page 26



 

5 
 

The Act in paragraph 1(2) of schedule 4 states the following types of trade are not 
street trading: 

a. a person trading as a Pedlar in accordance with the terms of a valid 
Pedlar’s Certificate (issued by the Police);  

b. a market trader operating at a market venue or a fair which acquired this 
status by virtue of a grant, enactment, or order.  

c. a news vendor selling only newspapers and periodicals.  
d. trade which is carried on at premises used as a petrol station  
e. shops do not require a Consent even if they operate outside or directly 

adjacent to the commercial premises providing the items displayed for sale 
form part of the same business as the trade conducted inside  i.e. where it 
is essentially an extension of the shop etc. e.g. where a grocer has a table 
of goods on display outside the shop. Again, this does not negate the need 
to comply with other legislation such as the requirement not to cause an 
obstruction of the highway 

f. trade carried out by ‘roundsmen’ (a ‘roundsman’ is defined as one who 
visits a ‘round’ of customers delivering only the orders of those customers”. 
e.g. milkmen); 

g. items exchanged for a charitable collection e.g. selling poppies in aid of the 
Royal British Legion, which are regulated by way of a Street Collection 
Permit under the Charities Act 1992. 

h. Sale of articles by a charity, or for charitable purposes, are regulated under 
Police, Factories, & c. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 by the Council. 
Charities should contact the Council to check which scheme of regulation 
the activity falls under 

Local Exemptions 

Having considered the character of the localities within Tamworth Borough, the 
Council regards the following activities as not requiring a Consent under the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982:  

Small scale sales of goods from farms and residential properties sold at/immediately 
outside the premises where they were produced will generally be exempt. This is 
intended to exempt someone who, for example, is selling on a small-scale items 
such as eggs, honey, plants, one off garage sales etc. 
 
A person trading at a community event held for non-commercial purposes, such as a 
fete or school fund raising activity, may be exempt from requiring a street trading 
consent, however, any stalls where any of the profit of the trading is retained by the 
trader for private gain, and not passed to the organisers of the event for use in, or by, 
the community concerned then the trader will not benefit from the exemption; 
 
Any event that has been classified as an ‘authorised event’ by the Arts & Events 
Team of Tamworth Borough Council will be exempt from requiring Street Trading 
Consents. 

 

Page 27



 

6 
 

4. Types of street  

Streets may be designated as either ‘prohibited’, ‘licensed’ or ‘consent streets’ for the 
purpose of street trading.  

Prohibited Streets  

If a street is designated as a prohibited street then a criminal offence is committed by 
any person engaging in street trading in that street. There could be a number of 
reasons for wishing to designate a street as prohibited. For example, the street may 
not be wide enough or the Council may wish to restrict trading in a particular area. 

Licensed Streets  

A licensed street is a street that requires a formal licence to have been granted 
before any street trading can take place. A licenced street designation is considered 
appropriate for the more formalised market type of trading in a street where the strict 
control of a limited amount of space is required. 

Consent Streets  

Designating a street a consent street enables trading to take place upon it, subject to 
the trader receiving a Street Trading Consent to trade from the Council.  

 

5. Street Trading within Tamworth  

Tamworth Borough Council has designated all streets within the borough as consent 
streets, with the exception of the A5 dual carriageway and Lower Gungate from it’s 
junction at Spinning School Lane and Little Church Lane which is designated as 
prohibited streets. There are no licensed streets in Tamworth. 

Street trading consent is needed for trading on all streets, laybys, pavements, or any 
land, including verges which are privately owned and the public can access, unless 
payment is made for entry. This includes private land car parks such as at 
supermarkets or pubs. 

Traders who wish to trade as part of an organised event must also apply to the 
Council for a street trading consent.  This does not effect the contractual 
requirements in relation to the Market Provider. 

Where an applicant wishes to trade on private land or land that is not Highway 
Maintained at Public Expense (HMPE), a consent will not be granted by the Council 
unless the applicant provides written permission from the landowner showing they 
have permission to trade. 

An applicant may need planning permission if they wish to trade from a particular 
plot of land. It is the applicant’s responsibility to check with the planning department 

Page 28



 

7 
 

before applying for a street trading consent to establish if planning permission is 
required. Consent will not be given where planning consent cannot be proven.  

The operation of a rival market, fair or car boot sale within Tamworth falls under the    
scope of the Tamworth Borough Council Market Rights Policy. 

Tamworth Borough Council will not issue a street trading consent for the following: 

• Suitcase salesmen and similar itinerant traders 

• The selling of cars and other vehicles in the course of a trade or business 

• The sale of live animals  

Permitted trading hours  

The Council generally will only permit street trading between 06.00 hours and 18.00 
hours. Any trading outside these hours will have to be approved by the Council. Street 
trading outside the guideline hours will be assessed in terms of public order, public 
nuisance and avoidance of nuisance and the needs of the area. The Council however 
retains the right to specify permitted hours of trading that are less than those specified 
above if local circumstances require it. 

Street traders who serve hot food or hot beverages at any time between 23:00 hours 
and 05:00 hours will also require a Premises Licence granted by the Licensing Authority 
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. 

Tamworth Market   

Street Traders who have consent to trade in the town centre will not be able to do so on 
a Tuesday and Saturday on George Street, Market Street, St Editha’s square or any 
area designated by the Council from time to time unless they trade as part of the general 
market, due to the operating conditions of the Tamworth Market Charter.  

 

6. Street Trading Consents  

Tamworth Borough Council issues four types of street trading consents as follows: 

Annual Street Trading Consent - This is a consent that lasts up to 12 months and 
enables the consent holder to trade from a designated pitch within Tamworth. An annual 
street trading consent issued to traders who trade in Tamworth town centre will only be 
issued for non-market days at a specified pitch. Traders wishing to trade on market days 
must contact the market operator.  

Temporary Street Trading Consent - Temporary consents are issued to traders who only 
want to trade at a specified pitch for a few days. The consent will normally only be 

Page 29



 

8 
 

granted for a period of between 1 and 7 days. Traders wishing to trade in Tamworth 
town centre on market days must contact the market operator. 

Mobile/Roaming Street Trading Consent - A mobile street trading consent is issued to 
traders who wish to move from place to place. A mobile trader must not remain in one 
place for more than twenty minutes at a time and not return to the same site within four 
hours. A typical mobile street trading consent would be an ice cream van.  

A mobile street trading consent only permits trading within the borough of Tamworth. If 
the unit goes into areas outside of the borough of Tamworth it will also need consent 
from the relevant authority.  

A mobile street trading consent may be granted for any period not exceeding 12 months.  

Special Event Trading Consent - Where trading occurs within the footprint of an 
approved special event a daily (per day) consent will be applied for.  

The consent permits trading exclusively at the location, on the dates and times of the 
event. 

At a special event the person is not operating independently but under the direction and 
supervision of the event organiser, who has committed to undertaking their own checks 
– e.g. Right to work and Fire regulation checks.  

 

7. Key considerations when assessing an application 

Each application for street trading consent will be considered on its own merits. It is our 
policy to carry out a consultation with relevant parties as considered appropriate, to 
inform our decision making.  

The Environmental Health Team will be consulted in relation to health & safety, food 
safety, pollution and noise. The Planning Team will be consulted in relation to the 
aesthetic appearance of the trading unit and its suitability in relation to complementing 
the area and facades of surrounding premises.  

Consultees may include the following: 

• Staffordshire Police 

• Staffordshire Fire and Rescue 

• Staffordshire County Council Highways Department 

• Trading Standards (Staffordshire County Council) 

• Tamworth Borough Council Environmental Health Team  

• Local Planning Authority 

Page 30



 

9 
 

• Relevant Ward Councillors  

• Other Local Authorities where relevant 

• Where appropriate, local residents and businesses within 100 metres of the 
proposed site  

• Current market operator  

• Other relevant Council departments such as Streetscence and Partnerships  

Although the consultation period is 28 days, where responses have been received 
from all consultees before the end of the consultation period the Licensing Team will 
update you with the outcome of the consultation. If no objections are received the 
consent will be issued within 5 working days. 

Once the consultation is complete, where no objections are received, the trader will 
be issued future consents without the need for further consultation provided no 
subsequent concerns are raised. 

Where the application is for an annual consent, the consent will be granted on 
completion of the consultation period. 

Should a consent holder wish to vary the consent substantially – e.g., type of 
provision offered or location – the relevant authorities will be reconsulted and an 
administration fee will apply. 

When assessing an application the following will be considered: 

      Public Safety  

The location of the proposed street trading activity should not present a substantial 
risk to the public in terms of road safety, obstruction and fire hazard. The term 
“public” refers to both customers frequenting the street trading activity, and other 
members of the public using the street. 

Where any proposed trading is within 50 metres of a school entrance, the Council 
will seek the views of the school.  

Where appropriate observations from Staffordshire Police, Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue Service and Tamworth Community Safety Partnership will be taken into 
consideration under this heading.      

Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the protection of children, young 
persons and adults with care and support needs from harm  

The street trading activity should not present a risk to good public order in the locality 
in which it is situated. The Council recognises that promoting the welfare of children 
and protecting them from harm is everyone’s responsibility, in particular, street 

Page 31



 

10 
 

traders who may have dealings with children, young people and adults with care and 
support needs have a duty to report matters of concern to the relevant authorities. 
Where appropriate observations from Staffordshire Police and Tamworth Community 
Safety Partnership will be taken into consideration under this heading.     

  Avoidance of Nuisance  

The street trading activity should not present a substantial risk of nuisance from 
noise, smells or fumes to households and businesses in the vicinity of the proposed 
street trading site. Where appropriate observations from relevant Council Officers 
shall be taken into consideration under this heading. 

Compliance with legal requirements  

The proposed street trading activity should be carried out from a trading unit that 
complies with the relevant legislation. Where appropriate observations from Council 
Officers on the compliance with the requirements of food safety and hygiene, health 
and safety, waste disposal arrangements and environmental protection legislation 
will be taken into consideration.     

Needs of the area  

The adequacy of other trading outlets will be taken into consideration in relation to 
the presence of like outlets already existing in the immediate locality of the                                   
proposed street trading site. 

Consultee Observations  

In relation to points above consideration will also be given to written observations 
from consultees. Any objections made to the proposed street trading activity will be 
considered in terms of relevancy and appropriateness to the application that has 
been made. 

Criminal Convictions 

The primary aim of this policy is public protection. To help in achieving that aim, the 
Council will consider the suitability of applicants to be authorised as street traders. 
The Council must be satisfied that the applicant is a suitable person to hold a street 
trading consent.  

Applicants will be required to provide a basic disclosure and barring service check as 
part of the application process. Any assistants, assisting on a regular basis, will also 
need to provide a basic disclosure and barring service check. For the purpose of this 
policy we would consider any person who works on the unit, without the consent 
holder being present, for more than 14 days a year, as assisting on a regular basis. 
The Council will not accept DBS checks that are more than 1 month old at the time 
of the application. 

Page 32



 

11 
 

Applicants that regularly apply may want to consider the DBS update service 

When determining an application for grant or renewal of a street trading consent the 
Council will consider whether the applicant has any unspent convictions under the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974. 

If you have previously been convicted of an offence this does not necessarily debar 
you from holding a consent unless the authority considers that the conviction renders 
you unsuitable. In making this decision the Council will consider the nature of the 
offence and how long it has been since you were convicted. Please see Annex 1 for 
a list of offences that the Council considers relevant to a street trading consent 
application. 

8. Letting of pitches 

The Council will designate trading pitches in specified locations and only applications 
for these designated pitches will be accepted. The Council will however be receptive 
to pitch proposals outside of the specified locations.  

Consent holders are not permitted to sub-let the pitch they are allocated under any     
circumstances. 

The types of goods allowed to be sold will be considered on a pitch-by-pitch basis 
and specified on the consent. The quality of goods and innovation will be considered 
when assessing applications. 

Quality of goods refers to traders making the proper (and legal) checks to ensure 
their goods are safe for use or consumption. In addition, the use of recyclable 
materials in the product or packaging, or the reduced use of packaging to minimise 
plastic or other waste will be improving quality. Innovative products refers to goods 
that are not readily available within the high street marketplace. Anyone applying for 
a stall must clearly state the nature of the proposed goods. The goods must not: 

•    Cause a nuisance, disturbance or annoyance to nearby properties/ people, 
including cooking smells, smoke, noise, litter and additional cleansing 
requirements for the Council  

•    Cause or contribute to crime and disorder – including the selling of fake or 
counterfeit goods 

•    Have a negative public health impact e.g. locality of fast food units near 
schools, gyms etc. 

When a pitch becomes temporarily unsuitable for any reason, the Council will seek         
to relocate consent holders to an alternative street trading pitch. The Council will not 
be liable for any loss for claims of earnings etc. If agreement cannot be reached for 
relocation, then consideration needs to be given by the trader in terms of giving 
notice for the consent and by the Council in terms of revoking consent.  

Page 33

https://www.gov.uk/dbs-update-service


 

12 
 

Street traders must make full use of their consent. The Council will assess whether a 
consent holder has made full use of their consent. Street traders shall notify the 
Council in circumstances where they do not intend to make use of their consent and 
notification should be in advance. If no prior notification is received and the Council is 
satisfied that the consent holder is not making full use of their consent it may re-let 
the street trading pitch to another trader. 

Multiple street trading consents may be granted to different applicants for the same 
pitch provided different specific trading days/ periods are applied for.  

9. Fees and charges  

Tamworth Borough Council set fees and charges for street trading. Fees and charges 
are reviewed annually.  
 
Please visit www.tamworth.gov.uk to find out what the current fees and charges are for 
street trading. When making an application the application fee must be paid in advance and 
is non-refundable.  
 
Where a consent is surrendered, the Council will remit or refund, as they consider 
appropriate, the whole or part of any consent fee paid for a grant or renewal of the consent 
subtracting any administration costs or any costs incurred in delivering the street trading 
service. 

 

10. How to apply for street trading consent 

To apply for a street consent a person must be: - 

• An individual or a business 

• 17 years of age or over  

• Legally entitled to live and work in the UK 

All applications must be made on the Council’s prescribed application form. The 
application must be completed in full, with all the required information before it will be 
considered.  

A new applicant for a street trading consent should apply at least 28 days before 
they intend to trade. This will allow for a proper consultation period to be undertaken.  

  The application must be accompanied by the following:   

• A non-refundable application fee (based on the cost of administering the     
application). 

• Photographic identification (e.g. passport, photo card driving licence)     

• Proof of eligibility to work in the UK  

Page 34



 

13 
 

• Location plan indicating any fixed positions that a person proposes to trade 
from. The plan should also clearly identify the site boundary with a red line. 

• For mobile street traders – a list of all the streets where the proposed trading is 
to take place. You must also give details of the days and times you intend to 
trade. 

A passport size photographs of the applicant and any other person assisting, 
taken within the last 12 months prior to the making of the application.  

• A Basic Criminal Disclosure check not more than 1 month old for the applicant. 
Basic Criminal Disclosure checks can be obtained from the Disclosure and 
Barring Service. Information can be found at https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-
criminal-record (Not applicable to short term consents).  

• The Council will require the name, address, date of birth, national insurance 
number, a basic criminal check (not more than 1 month old) and a photograph 
of all persons assisting on a regular basis. For the purpose of this policy we 
would consider any person who works on the unit, without the consent holder 
being present, for more than 14 days a year, as assisting on a regular basis.  

• A description and photographs of the trailer/vehicle or stall to be used  

• A copy of the certificate of insurance that covers the street trading activity for 
third party and public liability risks for a minimum of £5,000,000 

• For a food trader: latest inspection report / proof of compliance with current 
food safety standards and evidence of a food hygiene rating of 4 or above.   

• A completed risk assessment where a large or complex street trading event is 
proposed. The risk assessment must be completed by a competent person and 
identify any control measures deemed appropriate after assessment.   

Submitting the application form and related information does not allow the applicant 
the right to start trading. You can only begin to trade on receipt of your street trading 
consent documentation.  

11. Determining applications  

The approval procedure stages are set out at Annex 1. 

Before an initial street trading consent is granted, (or renewed) the Council will    
consult with and seek written representations from appropriate organisations and 
other enforcement agencies. A copy of the application will be sent to consultees 
within 5 working days of receiving the application.  

Consultees will be expected to submit any written representations within a 10 day 
period.  

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-criminal-record
https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-criminal-record
https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-criminal-record


 

14 
 

Each application will be decided on its own merits and the Council will either: 

• grant the consent as applied for with standard conditions (see Annex 2) 

• grant the consent with additional conditions or a variation to the application 

• refuse the consent. 

An officer of the Council with delegated powers to issue or refuse an application     
will make a decision following the consultation period.  

Where an application for consent is refused the council will notify the applicant in 
writing detailing the reason for refusal. 

Applications for grant or renewal   

Consents will not normally be granted or renewed where there is one or more of the 
following: 

• A valid objection  

• The proposed location is unsuitable for street trading activities  

• There is a potential risk to public safety 

• A significant detrimental effect on road safety would arise from the siting of the 
trading activity itself, or from customers visiting or leaving the site 

• The proposed trading site/pitch would obstruct the safe passage of the footway 
or carriageway  

• The proposed site/pitch does not allow the consent holder, staff or customers to 
park in a safe manner 

• The street trading unit is unsuitable 

(N.B. the vehicle, van trailer, stall, unit or other device used for the proposed 
street trading activity may need to be inspected by an authorised officer of the 
Council prior to the issue of any Street Trading Consent. This will particularly be 
the case where officers from the environmental health team need to inspect 
trailers etc. from which it is proposed to sell food items.) 

• The proposed street trading activity may cause nuisance, disturbance or 
annoyance to neighbouring properties 

• The applicant is unsuitable 

• An applicant has failed to appropriately use previous consents 

• The street trading activity may cause or contribute to crime and disorder 

Page 36



 

15 
 

• Enforcement action is pending or has previously been undertaken and proved 
against the applicant 

• The consent holder is currently in arrears with charges 

     This list is not exhaustive.  

Issue of Street Trading Consent  

Upon grant of an application, the Council will issue a street trading consent to which 
conditions will be attached. The consent will also contain specific terms such as the 
duration of the consent, days and hours when street trading is permitted and the 
goods that may be sold. A consent holder must display a copy of their consent in a 
position where it can be read by members of the public on the stall or vehicle at all 
times during which trading takes place.  

Changes to the consent 

Changes, such as to the consented goods may require a new application to be    
made and further consultation to be sought. 

However, minor amendments such as change of day or the addition of related items 
to the consent, may be made; however an administration fee will be chargeable.  

Renewal of consent  

Consents will expire on the date specified. Applicants who wish to continue trading 
should submit renewal applications at least 28 days prior to the expiry of the current 
consent. 

 The following must be submitted with a renewal application:  

• Renewal application form 

• Renewal Fee 

• Copy of current third-party liability insurance with a minimum value of £5 
million 

• A basic criminal disclosure for the consent holder and any person that assists 
on a regular basis from the Disclosure and Barring Service that is not more 
than 1 month old 

Invalid Applications  

Invalid or incomplete applications will be rejected. 

12. Refusal of application 

Decisions will be made in accordance with the aims of the policy in relation to the 

Page 37



 

16 
 

protection of the safety of the public and safeguarding and having regard to unspent 
convictions under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act.  

Any convictions / cautions, which are not spent and relate to sexual or violent 
behaviour (including domestic violence), drugs, firearm offences, theft/fraud, 
dishonesty or any offences involving harm to children or vulnerable persons will be 
refused or the application may be referred to the Licensing Committee for further 
consideration depending on the circumstances.  

Where serious allegations or cautions/convictions come to light during the period of 
holding the consent, the consent will be suspended, pending the outcome of 
investigations and, if convicted, revoked. 

Only DBS certificates dated less than one month old at the time of the application will 
be accepted. Applicants that regularly apply may want to consider the DBS update 
service, further information is available at www.gov.uk. 

If an Officer acting on a delegated basis is unable to grant a street trading consent 
the applicant will be notified in writing of the decision and the reason for refusal.  

13. Decision not to renew or revoke a Street Trading Consent 

A decision not to renew or to revoke a street trading consent may be made by an 
Officer acting on a delegated basis where, bearing in mind the aims of the consent 
regime, it is deemed by the Council to be appropriate. Any contravention of 
conditions may lead to a revocation or non-renewal of a street trading consent. A 
street trading consent may be revoked with immediate effect.  

Revocation  

There is no legal right of appeal against a decision to revoke a consent. Where a 
consent is revoked the council will advise the applicant verbally (where possible) and 
confirm the reasons for this in writing within 10 working days. 

The Head of Environmental Health may allow an appeal to the Licensing Committee 
if it is felt appropriate. Details on how to appeal will be given to applicants when a 
decision to revoke the consent has been made 

   Discretionary Appeals Procedure  

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 does not facilitate any 
legal appeal against the Council in relation to a decision not to grant, renew or to 
revoke a street trading consent. The Assistant Director Growth and regeneration 
may, however, allow an appeal to the Licensing Committee if it is felt appropriate.  

In such circumstances the applicant must write to Council within 10 working days of 
the receipt of the Council’s original decision. The appeal must set out the grounds for 
the appeal by the applicant/former consent holder.  

Page 38

http://www.gov.uk/


 

17 
 

The appeal will be determined by the Licensing Committee whose decision will be 
final. Applicants however may be able to avail themselves of the legal judicial review 
procedure. Any applicant/trader who does wish to consider this option is advised to 
take independent legal advice. 

14. Responsibilities of the Consent Holder  

A Consent Holder is responsible for ensuring all conditions are strictly complied with 
at all times and may be held liable under the appropriate legislation. Any 
contravention of conditions may lead to a revocation or non-renewal of the street 
trading consent and/or prosecution. In addition, an individual trader working under 
the benefit of a Consent Holder’s street trading consent may be individually liable 
under the appropriate legislation. 

Holding a consent for street trading will not remove the obligation on the trader to 
comply with any other legal requirements e.g. holding a current food business 
registration, nor override the duty to comply with any other legal requirements e.g. 
trespass, highways, planning, licensing, health and safety, nuisance, waste disposal 
requirements, food hygiene etc.  

Parking restrictions 

Traffic orders such as waiting restrictions must be complied with at all times. We may 
give consent for a vehicle to trade from a specific site but this does not give staff or 
customers permission to park or use the road in breach of any waiting or traffic 
restrictions. 

Planning permission 

A street trading consent is given to units where the unit is removed every day at the 
end of the trading period. If a unit is permanently located at a site it will require 
planning permission. Units that are removed everyday may also require planning 
permission in addition to street trading consent. This will be dependent on the 
location of the unit and the amount of times and days the unit is located at the site.  

Insurance 

Tamworth Borough Council will accept no liability for the street trading activities 
undertaken by the Consent Holder(s). Evidence of suitable public liability insurance 
(minimum value of £5 million) will be required from the applicant covering the period 
they wish to trade. 

The insurance must be maintained throughout the period of the consent and the 
consent will be revoked should the insurance be cancelled or breached or its sum 
altered as to provide less than the minimum value. 

Page 39



 

18 
 

If the insurance is due for renewal during the period covered by the consent, it is the 
responsibility of the consent holder to provide us with evidence that public liability 
insurance is continuous for the period of the consent. 

Food Units  

All food businesses must be appropriately registered with their local authority and 
have a food safety management plan in place. Certain low risk businesses are 
exempt from the hygiene rating scheme, so will not require a hygiene rating, 
however the Council may contact the relevant Local Authority Environmental Health 
Team to ensure adequate compliance with food law.  

All other traders that sell or provide food must have a national food hygiene rating of 
a 4 or 5. Applicants and consent holders are required, by the conditions of consent, 
to notify the Council of any reduction in their national food hygiene rating. 

Where there is significant food hygiene or food safety breach whilst a consent is in 
place, consent may be suspended or revoked. Applicants and consent holders must 
notify Tamworth Borough Council of any changes to their national food hygiene 
rating. Further information on running a food business is available at Business 
guidance | Food Standards Agency 

Removal of waste  

Commercial waste must be stored within the stall / trailer.  

Food stalls should make provision for the collection, removal and lawful disposal of 
customer waste as well as their trade waste and removing it from site in accordance 
with the trader’s commercial waste contract.  

The need for a waste receptacle will be considered on a case-by-case basis 
acknowledging that there may be instances where the provision of a waste 
receptacle will be required.  

Traders shall ensure that they comply with the law in relation to the disposal of 
waste. All businesses must put in formal arrangements for the disposal of waste 
created by their activities. It is an offence to dispose of trade waste in domestic 
refuse bins. 

15. Surrendering of Street Trading Consent 

Should an applicant no longer wish to hold a Street Trading Consent, they will need 
to provide written confirmation of this fact detailing the last trading day. 

Once they have ceased trading, they will be required to return the Street Trading 
Consent issued by the Council and the street trading badge to the Council within 7 
days of the last trading day. 

Page 40

https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance
https://www.food.gov.uk/business-guidance


 

19 
 

Once written confirmation has been received to cease trading on a pitch, new 
applications will be considered for the location. 

Where a consent is surrendered, the Council shall remit or refund, as they consider 
appropriate, the whole or a part of any fee paid for the grant or renewal of the 
consent.  

16. Enforcement of Street Trading  

It is recognised that well-directed enforcement activity by the Council benefits not 
only the public but also responsible members of the trade.  

All traders are required to take all reasonable precautions and exercise all due 
diligence to avoid the commission of any offences. 

A person commits an offence if they: 

1. Engage in street trading in a prohibited street. 

2. Engage in street trading in a consent street without first obtaining 
authorisation (including making payment) from us. 

3. Contravene a condition imposed on a consent. 

Any person guilty of such an offence will be liable, on conviction at a magistrates’ 
court to a fine of up to £1,000. 

All decisions and enforcement actions taken by the Licensing Authority will be in 
accordance with the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy and the principles of 
consistency, transparency and proportionality set out in the Regulator’s Compliance 
Code.  

Persons trading without authorisation and not subject to exemptions will be subject 
to pro-active enforcement action in accordance with our policy on enforcement. 

The following principles will be adhered to when carrying out street trading 
enforcement activities: 

Focussed – we will take account of both national priorities for local government 
enforcement reflecting local priorities based on evidence or emerging need and 
where the Council believes its efforts are able to have a greater impact in protecting 
risk to the public and well-being of the community as stated in the Council’s 
corporate plan.  

Accountable – our activities will be open to public scrutiny, with clear and accessible 
policies, and fair and efficient complaints procedures through our Tell Us process.  

Consistent – our advice to those we regulate will be robust and reliable and we will 
respect advice provided by other regulators. The Council shall seek to ensure 

Page 41



 

20 
 

consistency of enforcement; however, the Council realises that consistency is not a 
simple matter of uniformity. Officers will need to exercise their professional 
judgement and discretion according to the circumstances of each individual case and 
the relevant responsibilities and intervention systems maintained by the Council.  

Proportionate – our activities will be justified, reflecting the level of risk to the public 
and enforcement action taken will relate to the seriousness of the offence.  

Transparent – we will ensure that those we regulate are able to understand what is 
expected of them and what they can anticipate in return 

17. Equality and Diversity  

The Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public authorities to have due 
regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation; to advance equality of opportunity; and to foster good relation between 
persons with different protected characteristics, for example age, disability, race and 
religion.  

Tamworth Borough Council has a Statement of Intent for Equality and Diversity 
which requires that services are provided that embrace diversity, promote equality of 
opportunity and access. The statement can be found at 
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/equality-and-diversity 

18. Complaints against the service  

The Council has a corporate complaints procedure please see our website for further 
detail Comments, Compliments & Complaints | Tamworth Borough Council 

 

Page 42

http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/equality-and-diversity
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/comments-compliments-complaints


 

21 
 

 

Annex 1 

RELEVANT OFFENCES WHEN DETERMINING SUITABILITY OF AN APPLICANT 
FOR A STREET TRADING CONSENT 

Dishonesty 

A street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 - 5 years have lapsed since a 
conviction for an offence that involves dishonesty, for example theft or fraud, or 
completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the later. 

Violence 

If an applicant has been convicted for an offence for violence which involves loss of 
life, a street trading consent will not be granted. In other cases a street trading 
consent will not be granted unless 3 – 10 years have lapsed since a conviction for an 
offence relating to violence or completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the 
later. 

Drugs 

A street trading consent will not be granted unless 5 - 10 years have lapsed since a 
conviction relating to the supply or importation of drugs or completion of any 
sentence imposed whichever is the later. 

A Street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 - 5 years have lapsed since a 
conviction for an offence relating to the possession of drugs or completion of any 
sentence imposed whichever is the later. 

Sexual and Indecency Offences 

A street trading consent will not be granted where there are convictions for rape, 
indecent assault, any sexual offence involving children and any conviction for an 
Offence under the Sexual Offences Act 2003, or for indecent exposure. 
 
Exploitation 

A street trading consent will not be granted if there are convictions relation to 
exploitation of another individual. This will include slavery, child sexual exploitation 
and grooming. 
 
Motoring Convictions 

In most cases, motoring offences are unlikely to be relevant when considering a 
street trading consent application. However, there may be instances where the 
offences are of a very serious nature or may be relevant to the type of street trading 
activity. In those cases a street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 - 5 years 

Page 43



 

22 
 

have lapsed since any such convictions or completion of any sentence imposed 
whichever is the later. 

Street Trading Legislation 

The Council takes a serious view on applicants who have been convicted of street 
trading offences under Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982. In particular, a street trading consent will not be granted unless 
2 years have lapsed since any offence under the 1982 Act or if there is more than 
one conviction then 5 years must have lapsed. 

Formal Cautions and Fixed Penalty Notices 

For the purposes of these guidelines, the Council will treat Formal Cautions issued in 
accordance with Home Office guidance and fixed penalty notices as though they 
were a conviction before the courts. 

Existing Consent Holders Convicted of an Offence 

The Council may consider revoking the consent if the consent holder is convicted of 
an offence and in particular there will be concern if the offence falls into one of the 
categories detailed above.  

 

Page 44



 

23 
 

Annex 2 

PROCEDURE FOR DETERMINING STREET TRADING CONSENT 
APPLICATIONS 

           The application and approval procedure comprises the following stages: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

 

Application with all supporting documents is submitted to the 
Council

Consultations are carried out

Where appropriate an inspection of vehicle, trailer, stall etc. is 
conducted

Site assessment is made 

Have objections to the application been received?

Application meets policy guidelines

Application Approved Application Refused 

Consent issued 

YES

NOYES

NO

Letter sent to applicant 
stating grounds for 

refusal  

Page 45



 

24 
 

Annex 3 

Street Trading Conditions 

Tamworth Borough Council 

 

It is important that the consent holder should understand and at all times observe these 
conditions. Any breach of any condition could result in revocation of the street trading consent.  

1. The street trading shall only take place on the dates stipulated on the consent. 
2.            The street trading will only take place at the times stipulated on the consent. 
3.            The street trading shall only take place at the site(s) stipulated on the consent and/or 

attached map. 
4.            The street trading consent holder shall only trade from the stall/ vehicle stipulated on the 

consent. 
5.            The consent holder shall trade in strict accordance with this consent. 
6.            The street trading consent holder shall only trade in goods stipulated on the consent. 
7.            The holder of the consent shall notify the Licensing Team immediately of any convictions or 

proceedings being taken against the said person. 
8.            The street trading consent holder shall maintain the stall or vehicle in a clean state and its 

structure shall be kept in good order, repair and condition to the satisfaction of an Officer of 
the Council authorised in writing under the appropriate legislation. 

9.            The stall and all equipment shall be removed from the pitch after trading has ceased for the 
day unless permission to not remove are listed on the consent. 

10.          A copy of the consent, suitably protected against the weather, shall be available for 
inspection at all times when trading is taking place. 

11.          The holder of the consent or any person employed by them shall produce their street 
trading consent when required to do so by a Police Officer, or an authorised officer of 
Tamworth Borough Council.  

12.          No music or amplified noise will be played at the stall, unless it is granted special permission 
and listed on the consent. 

13.          Activities at the pitch must not cause a nuisance or annoyance to neighbouring properties. 
14.          No indentations, excavations or damage shall be made to street furniture. Nor shall 

anything be attached to street furniture. 
15.          After trading the pitch must be left in a clean and tidy condition. 
16.          Litter bins must be provided by all food traders and any other trader creating any kind of 

waste. All bins shall be emptied at least once a day and all waste disposed of appropriately. 
17.          The trading unit must be removed forthwith at the request of any authorised Tamworth 

Borough Council Officer, Police Officer, Fire Officer or representative of the Highways 
Authority. 

18.          No equipment is to be left on the pitch outside the trading hours. 
19.          All traders shall have at least £5 million public liability insurance covering any activity 

associated with their business. 
20.          Third party advertisements at the pitch are prohibited. 
21.          No illuminated advertisement on the outskirts or the stall, unless it is granted special 

permission and listed on the consent. 
22.          No auction sales are permitted. 
23.          Street trading stalls shall be equipped with safe and adequate lighting for operation during 

the hours if darkness. 
24.          Annual street trader must give the Council 7 days notice to change or terminate the 

consent. 

Page 46



 

25 
 

25.          If this consent relates to a special event and is issued as specified in the organisers 
application.  Should this ‘Special Event’ not proceed due to it being refused, cancelled or 
withdrawn, this consent will not be valid. 

26.          The Street Trading Consent Holder shall ensure that there is adequate protection on & 
around the designated pitch that would contain any food debris & grease that would 
otherwise require mechanical removal. Failure to adhere to the condition could result in a 
charge for the removal being made and any future applications being declined. 

 

27. A mobile street trading consent holder shall ensure that when carrying out the trading 
activities permitted on the mobile trading consent that: 

• The vehicle shall not wait in one location for more than twenty minutes 

• The vehicle shall move at least 50 metres from the last trading location and shall not 
return to that location within four hours 

• The vehicle shall move from location to location within the permitted area 

• The vehicle shall not trade or park within 500 metres of any entrance to any 
educational establishment, unless a prior formal invitation has been issued by the 
educational establishment 

28. Ice-cream vans must move from position to position remaining stationary for no more than 
5 minutes to initially attract customers and thereafter only long enough to serve customers 
present. 

 

Sounding of chimes (based on the National Code of Practice) 

Chimes and other audible signals should not be sounded: 

• For longer than 4 seconds at a time – an automatic cut out should be used. 

• When the vehicle is stationary. 

• Except on an approach to a selling point. 

• When in sight of another mobile trader which is trading. 

• Louder than 80dB(A) at 7.5m distance from the vehicle.  

 

 

 

  

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



List of Consultees – Draft Street Trading Policy 

 

Arts & Events Team – Tamworth Borough Council 

Ankerside Shopping Centre 

Staffordshire Fire Authority 

All Borough Councillors 

Environmental Health Team – Tamworth Borough Council 

Staffordshire County Council – Highways 

Staffordshire Police 

Planning Team – Tamworth Borough Council 

Staffordshire Trading Standards 

Existing Traders in Tamworth Town Centre 

All Mobile Food Traders registered with Tamworth Borough Council 

Tamworth Castle 

Stret Scene 

Enterprise Centre 

Tourism & Town Centre Development – Tamworth Borough Council 

LSD Promotions 

All Staffordshire Local Authorities & North Warwickshire Borough Council 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Prohibited Street 

 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Part 1 – Details  
What Policy/ 
Procedure/ 
Strategy/Project/Service 
is being assessed? 

Street Trading Policy 

Date Conducted 
 

22/01/24 

Name of Lead Officer 
and Service Area 

Sarah Gear 
Environmental Health 

Commissioning Team 
(if applicable) 

 

Director Responsible for  
project/service area 

Anna Miller 
Environmental Health 

Who are the main 
stakeholders 

Staffordshire Highways 

Describe what 
consultation has been 
undertaken.  Who was 
involved and what was 
the outcome 

Consultation will be with all holders of mobile food 
registrations, Staffordshire Police, Community Safety 
officers, Staffordshire County Council, Fire Authority, 
Members, Trading Standards, Environmental Health, 
Arts and Events Team.  

 
Outline the wider 
research that has taken 
place (E.G. 
commissioners, 
partners, other 
providers etc) 

N/A 

A decision to review or 
change a service 
 

 

A 
Strategy/Policy/Procedure 
 
 

x 

What are you assessing? 
Indicate with an ‘x’ 
which applies 
 

A function, service or 
project 
 

 

New 
 

x 

Existing 
 

 

What kind of 
assessment is it?  
Indicate with an ‘x’ 
which applies 
 Being reviewed 

 
 

Page 53



Being reviewed as a result 
of budget constraints / End 
of Contract 

 

 
 
 
 
Part 2 – Summary of Assessment  
Give a summary of your proposal and set out the aims/ objectives/ purposes/ and 
outcomes of the area you are impact assessing. 
 
The aim of the Policy is to create a street trading environment which ensures fair 
trading, protects the amenity of residents, ensures the safety of those trading, 
promotes diversity and consumer choice and provides applicants with advice and 
guidance on the Council’s approach to the administration for street trading 
consents and licences under Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”). 
 
 
Who will be affected and how? 
Street Traders currently operating – formalises what we already do but ensures 
expectations on licence holder and theirs of the authority are aligned. 
 
 
 
 
Are there any other functions, policies or services linked to this impact 
assessment? 
 
Yes  X  No   
 
If you answered ‘Yes’, please indicate what they are? 
 
Arts & Events procedure 
 
 

 
 
Part 3 – Impact on the Community  
Thinking about each of the Areas below, does or could the Policy function, or 
service have a direct impact on them? 
 
Impact Area Yes No Reason (provide brief 

explanation ) 
Age  x  
Disability  x  
Gender Reassignment  x  
Marriage & Civil Partnership  x  
Pregnancy & Maternity  x  

Page 54



Race  x  
Religion or belief  x  
Sexual orientation  x  
Sex  x  
Gypsy/Travelling Community  x  
Those with 
Caring/Dependent 
responsibilities  

 x  

Those having an offending 
past 

x  Legislation dictates offences 
that must be considered before 
granting a licence 

Children  x  
Vulnerable Adults  x  
Families  x  
Those who are homeless  x  
Those on low income  x  
Those with Drug or Alcohol 
problems 

 x  

Those with Mental Health 
issues 

 x  

Those with Physical Health 
issues 

 x  

Other (Please Detail) 
 

 x  

N/A This policy applies to all applying for a scrap metal dealers licence and has no 
bearing on any impact areas other than offending past. 
Part 4 – Risk Assessment 
From evidence given from previous question, please detail what measures or 
changes will be put in place to mitigate adverse implications 
Impact Area 
 

Details of the Impact Action to reduce risk 

Eg:  Families Families no longer 
supported which 
may lead to a 
reduced standard of 
living & subsequent 
health issues 

Signposting to other services.  Look 
to external funding opportunities.  

Those having an 
offending past 

If a relevant 
offence is held they 
will not be granted 
a licence 

Advice provided as to when they 
would be able to apply for a 
licence. 

   
   
   

 

Page 55



 
Part 5 - Action Plan and Review  
 
Detail in the plan below, actions that you have identified in your CIA, which will eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity 
and/or foster good relations. 
 
If you are unable to eliminate or reduce negative impact on any of the impact areas, you should explain why 
 

Impact (positive or 
negative) identified 

Action Person(s) 
responsible 

Target date Required outcome 

 
 

Outcomes and Actions entered onto 
Covalent 

   

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
Date of Review (If applicable) ……………………………………………….. 

P
age 56


	Agenda
	2 To receive the Minutes of the previous meeting
	8 Street Trading Policy 2024 - 2026
	Appendix 1 Draft Street Trading Policy 2024 - 2026
	Tamworth Borough Council has adopted the provisions of Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to regulate street trading in the borough of Tamworth through a Street Trading Consent Scheme.
	Tamworth Borough Council recognises the valuable contribution that street trading can make to communities, culture and the local economy.
	This policy sets out Tamworth Borough Council’s approach for managing street trading in the borough, and the process for applications and decision making.
	It is Tamworth Borough Council’s intention that the application of the Street Trading Policy, together with the proper application of street trading law in a consistent, fair and proportionate way will benefit the people who live, work in and visit Tamworth.
	Objectives of this policy
		To help protect public health and safety.
		To help safeguard public places that may be adversely affected by undesirable or uncontrolled street trading activities.
		To ensure that traders operate within the law and act fairly in their dealings with the public; and to prevent, nuisance, unsafe practices and anti-social behaviour.
		To promote a flexible approach in relation to applicants seeking to operate new street trading businesses in Tamworth.
		To provide applicants and Consent Holders with advice and guidance on the Council’s approach to the administration and enforcement of street trading.
		To enable the Council to deal with street trading applications and consents in a consistent, transparent, fair and proportionate way.
	Review of the policy
	This policy will be kept under review and where any significant amendments are considered necessary these will be approved by the Licensing Committee, after appropriate and relevant consultations have taken place. Minor amendments that do not impact on the aims and objectives of the policy, or reflect changes in legislation, will be made with the approval of the Assistant Director for Growth and Regeneration in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder.
	2.	Definition of terms used within this policy
	Within the terms of the Tamworth Borough Council Street Trading Consent Scheme the following definitions shall mean:
	The Council                           Tamworth Borough Council
	Authorised event 	an event that is organised by Tamworth Borough Council or an Independent Event Organiser who has made payment to Tamworth Borough Council for the hire of council owned land for the proposed event and will commit to provide details of Public Liability Insurance and Food Hygiene ratings (if required) to the Arts & Events Team.
	3.	What is street trading?
	The legislation that governs street trading is Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, (“The Act”). The Act defines street trading as the selling or exposing or offering for sale of any article (including a living thing) in a street.
	The Act states that a street includes any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public have access without payment.
	The Act in paragraph 1(2) of schedule 4 states the following types of trade are not street trading:
	h.	Sale of articles by a charity, or for charitable purposes, are regulated under Police, Factories, & c. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 by the Council. Charities should contact the Council to check which scheme of regulation the activity falls under
	Local Exemptions

	4.	Types of street
	Streets may be designated as either ‘prohibited’, ‘licensed’ or ‘consent streets’ for the purpose of street trading.
	Prohibited Streets
	If a street is designated as a prohibited street then a criminal offence is committed by any person engaging in street trading in that street. There could be a number of reasons for wishing to designate a street as prohibited. For example, the street may not be wide enough or the Council may wish to restrict trading in a particular area.
	Licensed Streets
	A licensed street is a street that requires a formal licence to have been granted before any street trading can take place. A licenced street designation is considered appropriate for the more formalised market type of trading in a street where the strict control of a limited amount of space is required.
	Consent Streets
	Designating a street a consent street enables trading to take place upon it, subject to the trader receiving a Street Trading Consent to trade from the Council.
	5.	Street Trading within Tamworth
	Tamworth Borough Council has designated all streets within the borough as consent streets, with the exception of the A5 dual carriageway and Lower Gungate from it’s junction at Spinning School Lane and Little Church Lane which is designated as prohibited streets. There are no licensed streets in Tamworth.
	Street trading consent is needed for trading on all streets, laybys, pavements, or any land, including verges which are privately owned and the public can access, unless payment is made for entry. This includes private land car parks such as at supermarkets or pubs.
	Traders who wish to trade as part of an organised event must also apply to the Council for a street trading consent.  This does not effect the contractual requirements in relation to the Market Provider.
	Where an applicant wishes to trade on private land or land that is not Highway Maintained at Public Expense (HMPE), a consent will not be granted by the Council unless the applicant provides written permission from the landowner showing they have permission to trade.
	An applicant may need planning permission if they wish to trade from a particular plot of land. It is the applicant’s responsibility to check with the planning department before applying for a street trading consent to establish if planning permission is required. Consent will not be given where planning consent cannot be proven.
	The operation of a rival market, fair or car boot sale within Tamworth falls under the    scope of the Tamworth Borough Council Market Rights Policy.
	Tamworth Borough Council will not issue a street trading consent for the following:
		Suitcase salesmen and similar itinerant traders
		The selling of cars and other vehicles in the course of a trade or business
		The sale of live animals
	Permitted trading hours
	The Council generally will only permit street trading between 06.00 hours and 18.00 hours. Any trading outside these hours will have to be approved by the Council. Street trading outside the guideline hours will be assessed in terms of public order, public nuisance and avoidance of nuisance and the needs of the area. The Council however retains the right to specify permitted hours of trading that are less than those specified above if local circumstances require it.
	Street traders who serve hot food or hot beverages at any time between 23:00 hours and 05:00 hours will also require a Premises Licence granted by the Licensing Authority in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003.
	Tamworth Market
	Street Traders who have consent to trade in the town centre will not be able to do so on a Tuesday and Saturday on George Street, Market Street, St Editha’s square or any area designated by the Council from time to time unless they trade as part of the general market, due to the operating conditions of the Tamworth Market Charter.
	6.	Street Trading Consents
	Tamworth Borough Council issues four types of street trading consents as follows:
	Annual Street Trading Consent - This is a consent that lasts up to 12 months and enables the consent holder to trade from a designated pitch within Tamworth. An annual street trading consent issued to traders who trade in Tamworth town centre will only be issued for non-market days at a specified pitch. Traders wishing to trade on market days must contact the market operator.
	Temporary Street Trading Consent - Temporary consents are issued to traders who only want to trade at a specified pitch for a few days. The consent will normally only be granted for a period of between 1 and 7 days. Traders wishing to trade in Tamworth town centre on market days must contact the market operator.
	Mobile/Roaming Street Trading Consent - A mobile street trading consent is issued to traders who wish to move from place to place. A mobile trader must not remain in one place for more than twenty minutes at a time and not return to the same site within four hours. A typical mobile street trading consent would be an ice cream van.
	A mobile street trading consent only permits trading within the borough of Tamworth. If the unit goes into areas outside of the borough of Tamworth it will also need consent from the relevant authority.
	A mobile street trading consent may be granted for any period not exceeding 12 months.
	Special Event Trading Consent - Where trading occurs within the footprint of an approved special event a daily (per day) consent will be applied for.
	The consent permits trading exclusively at the location, on the dates and times of the event.
	At a special event the person is not operating independently but under the direction and supervision of the event organiser, who has committed to undertaking their own checks – e.g. Right to work and Fire regulation checks.
	7.	Key considerations when assessing an application
	Each application for street trading consent will be considered on its own merits. It is our policy to carry out a consultation with relevant parties as considered appropriate, to inform our decision making.
	The Environmental Health Team will be consulted in relation to health & safety, food safety, pollution and noise. The Planning Team will be consulted in relation to the aesthetic appearance of the trading unit and its suitability in relation to complementing the area and facades of surrounding premises.
	Consultees may include the following:
		Staffordshire Police
		Staffordshire Fire and Rescue
		Staffordshire County Council Highways Department
		Trading Standards (Staffordshire County Council)
		Tamworth Borough Council Environmental Health Team
		Local Planning Authority
		Relevant Ward Councillors
		Other Local Authorities where relevant
		Where appropriate, local residents and businesses within 100 metres of the proposed site
		Current market operator
		Other relevant Council departments such as Streetscence and Partnerships
	Although the consultation period is 28 days, where responses have been received from all consultees before the end of the consultation period the Licensing Team will update you with the outcome of the consultation. If no objections are received the consent will be issued within 5 working days.
	When assessing an application the following will be considered:
	Public Safety
	The location of the proposed street trading activity should not present a substantial risk to the public in terms of road safety, obstruction and fire hazard. The term “public” refers to both customers frequenting the street trading activity, and other members of the public using the street.
	Where any proposed trading is within 50 metres of a school entrance, the Council will seek the views of the school.
	Where appropriate observations from Staffordshire Police, Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service and Tamworth Community Safety Partnership will be taken into consideration under this heading.
	Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the protection of children, young persons and adults with care and support needs from harm
	The street trading activity should not present a risk to good public order in the locality in which it is situated. The Council recognises that promoting the welfare of children and protecting them from harm is everyone’s responsibility, in particular, street traders who may have dealings with children, young people and adults with care and support needs have a duty to report matters of concern to the relevant authorities. Where appropriate observations from Staffordshire Police and Tamworth Community Safety Partnership will be taken into consideration under this heading.
	Avoidance of Nuisance
	The street trading activity should not present a substantial risk of nuisance from noise, smells or fumes to households and businesses in the vicinity of the proposed street trading site. Where appropriate observations from relevant Council Officers shall be taken into consideration under this heading.
	Compliance with legal requirements
	The proposed street trading activity should be carried out from a trading unit that complies with the relevant legislation. Where appropriate observations from Council Officers on the compliance with the requirements of food safety and hygiene, health and safety, waste disposal arrangements and environmental protection legislation will be taken into consideration.
	Needs of the area
	The adequacy of other trading outlets will be taken into consideration in relation to the presence of like outlets already existing in the immediate locality of the                                   proposed street trading site.
	Consultee Observations
	In relation to points above consideration will also be given to written observations from consultees. Any objections made to the proposed street trading activity will be considered in terms of relevancy and appropriateness to the application that has been made.
	Criminal Convictions
	The primary aim of this policy is public protection. To help in achieving that aim, the Council will consider the suitability of applicants to be authorised as street traders. The Council must be satisfied that the applicant is a suitable person to hold a street trading consent.
	Applicants will be required to provide a basic disclosure and barring service check as part of the application process. Any assistants, assisting on a regular basis, will also need to provide a basic disclosure and barring service check. For the purpose of this policy we would consider any person who works on the unit, without the consent holder being present, for more than 14 days a year, as assisting on a regular basis. The Council will not accept DBS checks that are more than 1 month old at the time of the application.
	Applicants that regularly apply may want to consider the DBS update service
	When determining an application for grant or renewal of a street trading consent the Council will consider whether the applicant has any unspent convictions under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974.
	If you have previously been convicted of an offence this does not necessarily debar you from holding a consent unless the authority considers that the conviction renders you unsuitable. In making this decision the Council will consider the nature of the offence and how long it has been since you were convicted. Please see Annex 1 for a list of offences that the Council considers relevant to a street trading consent application.
	8.	Letting of pitches
	The Council will designate trading pitches in specified locations and only applications for these designated pitches will be accepted. The Council will however be receptive to pitch proposals outside of the specified locations.
	Consent holders are not permitted to sub-let the pitch they are allocated under any     circumstances.
	The types of goods allowed to be sold will be considered on a pitch-by-pitch basis and specified on the consent. The quality of goods and innovation will be considered when assessing applications.
	Quality of goods refers to traders making the proper (and legal) checks to ensure their goods are safe for use or consumption. In addition, the use of recyclable materials in the product or packaging, or the reduced use of packaging to minimise plastic or other waste will be improving quality. Innovative products refers to goods that are not readily available within the high street marketplace. Anyone applying for a stall must clearly state the nature of the proposed goods. The goods must not:
		Cause a nuisance, disturbance or annoyance to nearby properties/ people, including cooking smells, smoke, noise, litter and additional cleansing requirements for the Council
		Cause or contribute to crime and disorder – including the selling of fake or counterfeit goods
		Have a negative public health impact e.g. locality of fast food units near schools, gyms etc.
	When a pitch becomes temporarily unsuitable for any reason, the Council will seek         to relocate consent holders to an alternative street trading pitch. The Council will not be liable for any loss for claims of earnings etc. If agreement cannot be reached for relocation, then consideration needs to be given by the trader in terms of giving notice for the consent and by the Council in terms of revoking consent.
	Street traders must make full use of their consent. The Council will assess whether a consent holder has made full use of their consent. Street traders shall notify the Council in circumstances where they do not intend to make use of their consent and notification should be in advance. If no prior notification is received and the Council is satisfied that the consent holder is not making full use of their consent it may re-let the street trading pitch to another trader.
	Multiple street trading consents may be granted to different applicants for the same pitch provided different specific trading days/ periods are applied for.
	9.	Fees and charges
	10.	How to apply for street trading consent
	To apply for a street consent a person must be: -
		An individual or a business
		17 years of age or over
		Legally entitled to live and work in the UK
	All applications must be made on the Council’s prescribed application form. The application must be completed in full, with all the required information before it will be considered.
	A new applicant for a street trading consent should apply at least 28 days before they intend to trade. This will allow for a proper consultation period to be undertaken.
	The application must be accompanied by the following:
		A non-refundable application fee (based on the cost of administering the     application).
		Photographic identification (e.g. passport, photo card driving licence)
		Proof of eligibility to work in the UK
		Location plan indicating any fixed positions that a person proposes to trade from. The plan should also clearly identify the site boundary with a red line.
		For mobile street traders – a list of all the streets where the proposed trading is to take place. You must also give details of the days and times you intend to trade.
	A passport size photographs of the applicant and any other person assisting, taken within the last 12 months prior to the making of the application.
		A Basic Criminal Disclosure check not more than 1 month old for the applicant. Basic Criminal Disclosure checks can be obtained from the Disclosure and Barring Service. Information can be found at https://www.gov.uk/request-copy-criminal-record (Not applicable to short term consents).
		The Council will require the name, address, date of birth, national insurance number, a basic criminal check (not more than 1 month old) and a photograph of all persons assisting on a regular basis. For the purpose of this policy we would consider any person who works on the unit, without the consent holder being present, for more than 14 days a year, as assisting on a regular basis.
		A description and photographs of the trailer/vehicle or stall to be used
		A copy of the certificate of insurance that covers the street trading activity for third party and public liability risks for a minimum of £5,000,000
		For a food trader: latest inspection report / proof of compliance with current food safety standards and evidence of a food hygiene rating of 4 or above.
		A completed risk assessment where a large or complex street trading event is proposed. The risk assessment must be completed by a competent person and identify any control measures deemed appropriate after assessment.
	Submitting the application form and related information does not allow the applicant the right to start trading. You can only begin to trade on receipt of your street trading consent documentation.
	11.	Determining applications
	The approval procedure stages are set out at Annex 1.
	Before an initial street trading consent is granted, (or renewed) the Council will    consult with and seek written representations from appropriate organisations and other enforcement agencies. A copy of the application will be sent to consultees within 5 working days of receiving the application.
	Consultees will be expected to submit any written representations within a 10 day period.
	Each application will be decided on its own merits and the Council will either:
	•	grant the consent as applied for with standard conditions (see Annex 2)
	•	grant the consent with additional conditions or a variation to the application
	•	refuse the consent.
	An officer of the Council with delegated powers to issue or refuse an application     will make a decision following the consultation period.
	Where an application for consent is refused the council will notify the applicant in writing detailing the reason for refusal.
	Applications for grant or renewal
	Consents will not normally be granted or renewed where there is one or more of the following:
		A valid objection
		The proposed location is unsuitable for street trading activities
		There is a potential risk to public safety
		A significant detrimental effect on road safety would arise from the siting of the trading activity itself, or from customers visiting or leaving the site
		The proposed trading site/pitch would obstruct the safe passage of the footway or carriageway
		The proposed site/pitch does not allow the consent holder, staff or customers to park in a safe manner
		The street trading unit is unsuitable
	(N.B. the vehicle, van trailer, stall, unit or other device used for the proposed street trading activity may need to be inspected by an authorised officer of the Council prior to the issue of any Street Trading Consent. This will particularly be the case where officers from the environmental health team need to inspect trailers etc. from which it is proposed to sell food items.)
		The proposed street trading activity may cause nuisance, disturbance or annoyance to neighbouring properties
		The applicant is unsuitable
		An applicant has failed to appropriately use previous consents
		The street trading activity may cause or contribute to crime and disorder
		Enforcement action is pending or has previously been undertaken and proved against the applicant
		The consent holder is currently in arrears with charges
	This list is not exhaustive.
	Issue of Street Trading Consent
	Upon grant of an application, the Council will issue a street trading consent to which conditions will be attached. The consent will also contain specific terms such as the duration of the consent, days and hours when street trading is permitted and the goods that may be sold. A consent holder must display a copy of their consent in a position where it can be read by members of the public on the stall or vehicle at all times during which trading takes place.
	Changes to the consent
	Changes, such as to the consented goods may require a new application to be    made and further consultation to be sought.
	However, minor amendments such as change of day or the addition of related items to the consent, may be made; however an administration fee will be chargeable.
	Renewal of consent
	Consents will expire on the date specified. Applicants who wish to continue trading should submit renewal applications at least 28 days prior to the expiry of the current consent.
	The following must be submitted with a renewal application:
		Renewal application form
		Renewal Fee
		Copy of current third-party liability insurance with a minimum value of £5 million
		A basic criminal disclosure for the consent holder and any person that assists on a regular basis from the Disclosure and Barring Service that is not more than 1 month old
	Invalid Applications
	12.	Refusal of application
	If an Officer acting on a delegated basis is unable to grant a street trading consent the applicant will be notified in writing of the decision and the reason for refusal.
	13.	Decision not to renew or revoke a Street Trading Consent
	A decision not to renew or to revoke a street trading consent may be made by an Officer acting on a delegated basis where, bearing in mind the aims of the consent regime, it is deemed by the Council to be appropriate. Any contravention of conditions may lead to a revocation or non-renewal of a street trading consent. A street trading consent may be revoked with immediate effect.
	Revocation

	The Head of Environmental Health may allow an appeal to the Licensing Committee if it is felt appropriate. Details on how to appeal will be given to applicants when a decision to revoke the consent has been made
	Discretionary Appeals Procedure
	The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 does not facilitate any legal appeal against the Council in relation to a decision not to grant, renew or to revoke a street trading consent. The Assistant Director Growth and regeneration may, however, allow an appeal to the Licensing Committee if it is felt appropriate.
	In such circumstances the applicant must write to Council within 10 working days of the receipt of the Council’s original decision. The appeal must set out the grounds for the appeal by the applicant/former consent holder.
	The appeal will be determined by the Licensing Committee whose decision will be final. Applicants however may be able to avail themselves of the legal judicial review procedure. Any applicant/trader who does wish to consider this option is advised to take independent legal advice.
	14.	Responsibilities of the Consent Holder
	A Consent Holder is responsible for ensuring all conditions are strictly complied with at all times and may be held liable under the appropriate legislation. Any contravention of conditions may lead to a revocation or non-renewal of the street trading consent and/or prosecution. In addition, an individual trader working under the benefit of a Consent Holder’s street trading consent may be individually liable under the appropriate legislation.
	Holding a consent for street trading will not remove the obligation on the trader to comply with any other legal requirements e.g. holding a current food business registration, nor override the duty to comply with any other legal requirements e.g. trespass, highways, planning, licensing, health and safety, nuisance, waste disposal requirements, food hygiene etc.
	Parking restrictions
	Traffic orders such as waiting restrictions must be complied with at all times. We may give consent for a vehicle to trade from a specific site but this does not give staff or customers permission to park or use the road in breach of any waiting or traffic restrictions.
	Planning permission
	A street trading consent is given to units where the unit is removed every day at the end of the trading period. If a unit is permanently located at a site it will require planning permission. Units that are removed everyday may also require planning permission in addition to street trading consent. This will be dependent on the location of the unit and the amount of times and days the unit is located at the site.
	Insurance
	Tamworth Borough Council will accept no liability for the street trading activities undertaken by the Consent Holder(s). Evidence of suitable public liability insurance (minimum value of £5 million) will be required from the applicant covering the period they wish to trade.
	The insurance must be maintained throughout the period of the consent and the consent will be revoked should the insurance be cancelled or breached or its sum altered as to provide less than the minimum value.
	If the insurance is due for renewal during the period covered by the consent, it is the responsibility of the consent holder to provide us with evidence that public liability insurance is continuous for the period of the consent.
	Food Units
	All food businesses must be appropriately registered with their local authority and have a food safety management plan in place. Certain low risk businesses are exempt from the hygiene rating scheme, so will not require a hygiene rating, however the Council may contact the relevant Local Authority Environmental Health Team to ensure adequate compliance with food law.
	Where there is significant food hygiene or food safety breach whilst a consent is in place, consent may be suspended or revoked. Applicants and consent holders must notify Tamworth Borough Council of any changes to their national food hygiene rating. Further information on running a food business is available at Business guidance | Food Standards Agency
	Removal of waste
	15.	Surrendering of Street Trading Consent
	Should an applicant no longer wish to hold a Street Trading Consent, they will need to provide written confirmation of this fact detailing the last trading day.
	Once they have ceased trading, they will be required to return the Street Trading Consent issued by the Council and the street trading badge to the Council within 7 days of the last trading day.
	Once written confirmation has been received to cease trading on a pitch, new applications will be considered for the location.
	Where a consent is surrendered, the Council shall remit or refund, as they consider appropriate, the whole or a part of any fee paid for the grant or renewal of the consent.
	16.	Enforcement of Street Trading
	It is recognised that well-directed enforcement activity by the Council benefits not only the public but also responsible members of the trade.
	All traders are required to take all reasonable precautions and exercise all due diligence to avoid the commission of any offences.
	A person commits an offence if they:
	1.	Engage in street trading in a prohibited street.
	2.	Engage in street trading in a consent street without first obtaining authorisation (including making payment) from us.
	3.	Contravene a condition imposed on a consent.
	Any person guilty of such an offence will be liable, on conviction at a magistrates’ court to a fine of up to £1,000.
	All decisions and enforcement actions taken by the Licensing Authority will be in accordance with the Council’s Corporate Enforcement Policy and the principles of consistency, transparency and proportionality set out in the Regulator’s Compliance Code.
	Persons trading without authorisation and not subject to exemptions will be subject to pro-active enforcement action in accordance with our policy on enforcement.
	The following principles will be adhered to when carrying out street trading enforcement activities:
	Focussed – we will take account of both national priorities for local government enforcement reflecting local priorities based on evidence or emerging need and where the Council believes its efforts are able to have a greater impact in protecting risk to the public and well-being of the community as stated in the Council’s corporate plan.
	Accountable – our activities will be open to public scrutiny, with clear and accessible policies, and fair and efficient complaints procedures through our Tell Us process.
	Consistent – our advice to those we regulate will be robust and reliable and we will respect advice provided by other regulators. The Council shall seek to ensure consistency of enforcement; however, the Council realises that consistency is not a simple matter of uniformity. Officers will need to exercise their professional judgement and discretion according to the circumstances of each individual case and the relevant responsibilities and intervention systems maintained by the Council.
	Proportionate – our activities will be justified, reflecting the level of risk to the public and enforcement action taken will relate to the seriousness of the offence.
	Transparent – we will ensure that those we regulate are able to understand what is expected of them and what they can anticipate in return
	17.	Equality and Diversity
	The Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; to advance equality of opportunity; and to foster good relation between persons with different protected characteristics, for example age, disability, race and religion.
	Tamworth Borough Council has a Statement of Intent for Equality and Diversity which requires that services are provided that embrace diversity, promote equality of opportunity and access. The statement can be found at http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/equality-and-diversity
	18.	Complaints against the service
	The Council has a corporate complaints procedure please see our website for further detail Comments, Compliments & Complaints | Tamworth Borough Council
	Annex 1
	RELEVANT OFFENCES WHEN DETERMINING SUITABILITY OF AN APPLICANT FOR A STREET TRADING CONSENT
	Dishonesty
	A street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 - 5 years have lapsed since a conviction for an offence that involves dishonesty, for example theft or fraud, or completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the later.
	Violence
	If an applicant has been convicted for an offence for violence which involves loss of life, a street trading consent will not be granted. In other cases a street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 – 10 years have lapsed since a conviction for an offence relating to violence or completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the later.
	Drugs
	A street trading consent will not be granted unless 5 - 10 years have lapsed since a conviction relating to the supply or importation of drugs or completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the later.
	A Street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 - 5 years have lapsed since a conviction for an offence relating to the possession of drugs or completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the later.
	Sexual and Indecency Offences
	Exploitation
	Motoring Convictions
	offences are of a very serious nature or may be relevant to the type of street trading activity. In those cases a street trading consent will not be granted unless 3 - 5 years have lapsed since any such convictions or completion of any sentence imposed whichever is the later.
	Street Trading Legislation
	The Council takes a serious view on applicants who have been convicted of street trading offences under Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. In particular, a street trading consent will not be granted unless 2 years have lapsed since any offence under the 1982 Act or if there is more than one conviction then 5 years must have lapsed.
	Formal Cautions and Fixed Penalty Notices
	For the purposes of these guidelines, the Council will treat Formal Cautions issued in accordance with Home Office guidance and fixed penalty notices as though they were a conviction before the courts.
	Existing Consent Holders Convicted of an Offence
	The Council may consider revoking the consent if the consent holder is convicted of an offence and in particular there will be concern if the offence falls into one of the categories detailed above.
	Annex 2
	PROCEDURE FOR DETERMINING STREET TRADING CONSENT APPLICATIONS
	The application and approval procedure comprises the following stages:
	Annex 3

	Appendix 2 List of Consultees
	Appendix 3 Plan of Tamworth Town Centre
	Appendix 4 Impact Assessment


